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Independent Auditor’s Report
Ta the Sharcholders of Saudi Chemical Holding Company
(A Sawdn Joant Stock Compuany )

ELio
We hove audited the consolidated lnancial stafements of Soudi Chemical Holding Company {the
“Company™) and its subsidiaries (the “Croup™), which comprize the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidafed staiement of changes 10 equity and consolidaied statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, incloeding material
accounting poelicy information.

In our opinion, the aceompanying consolidated financial statcments present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated linancial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and its consolidated [nancial
performance and ils consolidated cash fows for the vear then ended in accordance with [ntemational
Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Sandi Arabia and other standards and
proncuncements that are endorsed by the Sawdi Organzzation for Chartered and Professional Accountanis.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsihilitics for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Intemabional Code of Ethics for Professional
Acconmtants (including Intermational Independence Standards) that 1% endorsed in the Kingdorm of Saudi
Arabia that s relevant o our audi of the conzolidated financial statements, and we have fulfilled our
ofher ethical responsibilities in sccordanee with that Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained 15 sufficient and appropriate i provide a bagis for our opinion.

Key Aundit Matters

Koy audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the cument period. These matters were addressed in the
contexl of our audil of the consolidated financial stalements as a whole, and in forming auditor’s opinion
thereom. and we do not provide & scparate opinion on these matters. Forcach matter below, our description
of how our sudit addressed the matter is provided in thal contexL.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Aoditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our reporl, mcluding in relation 1o these matfers.
Accordingly, our andit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the nsks of matenal misstatement of the consolidaicd financial staiemenis. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opimon on the accompanying conselidated financial statements,
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Taothe Sharehalders of Sauwdi Chermical Holding Company

(A Sandi Joint Stock Company) (continuwead)

Key Audit Matiers (continued)

Eey audit matber How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of goodwill
goodwill balance of 3K 4698 million.

To assess if there is an impairment in the
goodwill, the Group conducts  goodwill
impairment test annually or whenever changes
in circumstances or events indicate that, the
carrying amount of goodwill may not be
recoverable.

We considered this to be & key audit matter
prven the sigmifeant judaement and esfimation
required to determine recoverable amount and
uncertainty inherent in underlving forecasts and
assumplions,

Hefer fa note 310 for the aecounting palicy
redoted to dmpaivenend of nonsfinancial axets
and wote 4 for the significan occouning
estimates  and  assumpiion and | ficlgements
FElIIRE o Iepaimvent of won-fiRanclinl assers
ang nate 7 for the relomed disclosires.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a | Our audii procedures performed included, among

others, the following:

Invelved our valoation specialists o assist in
eviluating key assumptions and
methodologies  used by management, in
particular those relating to the discount rates
and lerminal values,

Corroborated input data to supporting evidence
such as approved budgels and considered the
reasonablenpss of these budgets.

Tested the mathematical accuracy of cash flow
mudels,

Performed  sensitivily analysis around  the
quantitative key assumpiions, o assess if the
selected adverse changes o0 the key
assumptions, both individually and in
ageregate, would not cause the canying
amount to exceed the recoverable amount.”™,

Agsessed  the adequacy of the relewvant
disclosures  included inm the consolidated

fimancinl siotements,
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Ta the Sharcholders of Saudi Chemical Holding Company

(A Sawds Jount Stock Company b {continwed)

ey Aundit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addrezsed the key audit matter

Allewance for impairment of trade receivable

As at 3] December 2023, the Group™s frade
recelvables amounted to SR L9 billion against
which an impainent allowanee of SK 1629
million 15 mamiamed.

The Group uses the expected credit loss model
(ECL) as required by Intemational Financial
Reporting Standard 9 (Financial Instrument)
(IFRS 9) to calculate allowance for impairment
of trade receivable.

We considered this as a key audit matter as it
involves  complex  caleulstions and  use of
nssumptions by management m addition o the
materiality of the amounts involved.

Hefor o note 213 for the geommiing policy
reloted & wllowance for impalvment of frade
receivable and note 4 for the sienificant
aeenieniing  estimetey  and  assumpiion g
fudgementy related o alfowance for impairment
af frade receivalie omd aowe T for the relaied
discloswres.,

Our audit procedures performed included, among
others, the following:

Assessed  the design,  implementation,  and
operating effectiveness of the key controls
related to:
® Recording of trede receivables and
seltlernents,
= Trade receivables aging reports.

Assessed  significant  assumptions,  including
collection rates, impainment ratios and those
relating to fture economic events that are used
to caleulate the expected credit loss.

Tnvelved our specialists in arcas that required
specific expertise (i.e. data reliability and the
expected credit loss model).

Tested the mathematical accurucy of the ECL
midel.

Asgessed  the adequacy of the relevant
disclosures included in the consolidated financial
stnfements,
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Tao the Sharcholders of Saudi Chemical Holding Company
(A Sawdn Jount Stock Company b {continwed)

ey Aundit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addrezsed the key audit matter

Provision of inventories
Inventorics as at 31 December 2023 amounted | Our audit procedures performed  included, among

slow-moving, near-expiry  and  expired

inventories of 5K 37,6 million.

Provision for near-expiry and expired inventory
arc required for products that are not subject to
replacement or retun by suppliers as well as
slow-moving inventory.

W considersd the provision of inventory a key
andit matter due to sgnificant judgement by
management that iz required in assessing the
appropriate level of the provision

Hefer to node 315 for the aecounting policy
related  Jo imvventovies and wote 4 for fhe
significant ety exfinraies amnd
assumption  and  fudgementy  relating o
pravision for imeentory and pore 10 e e
refared divolosures,

to SR 1.1 billion after considering provision of | others, the following:

o Obtpined an understating of the process and
documentation that Group's management
established and implemented in identifying
ilems that are not sobject to relum or
replacement by the suppliers.

#  Tested the accuracy of the aging report for a
sample of products.

& Tested, on o sample basis, the upderlving data
of the products included in the allowance

calculation, ;

o Assessed  the  adeguacy  of the  relevant
disclosures  incleded in the consolidated
Onancial stafemenls.

Other information incloded in the Group's 2023 Annaal Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Growp's 2023 arnual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the
other information m its annoal report. The Group®s 2023 annual report is expected to be made available

Lo us afler the date of this auditor’s repart.

Our opinion on the consolidsted financial statements does not cover the olber information and we will

nol express any fomm of assumnee conglusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consclidated financial statervents, our responstbility 15 1o read the
oiter information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is matcrially inconsistent with the consolidated financial staterments or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 10 be materially misstated.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the censolidated financial
stolements in secordance with Infemational Finsncial Beporting Standards that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements that are endorsed by the Saudi
Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants and the provisions of Companies” Law and
Company”s By-laws, and for such internal contro] as management delemings is necessary (o enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that anc free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or emor.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
abality to continue as a going concem, disclesing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends o liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group™s financial reporting process.

Anditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

O abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidaied hinancial statements as
awhole are free from matierial mizsstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issoe an anditor™s repon
that ineledes our opinion, Ressonable assurance 15 o high level of assurance, but 15 nof 2 guarantes thal
an audit conducted in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing that are endomsed in the
Kingdom of Sandi Arabia will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fmud or error and are considered matenal if, individuplly or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions of vsers taken on the basis of thesc
conselidated fnancial stslements.

As part of an audit in acoordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabin, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audil. We also:

o [deniify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due 1o fraud or error, design and perform audnt procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit cvidence that is sufficicnt and appropriste to provide a basis for our opimion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from feawd 15 higher than [or ome resuliing
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the overnde of mternal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures thal sre appropriate in the circumsiances, but not for the purpoese of expressing an
opinion on the effectivencss of the Group's intemal control.

#  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
esiimales and related disclosures made by management.
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(A Sauds Jomnt Stock Company ) {continued)

Anditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued )

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of sccounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether o materiol uncertninty exists reloted to cvents
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor s report i the relaied disclosures in the consoldated financial staemenis or, i7such
disclosures are inadequate, 10 modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obinined up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, fulure evenls or condilions
iy cause the Group to cease to confinue 45 & going Concern.

o  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial staterments,
ingluding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlving transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

s Obtain sufficient appropriste audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business sctivitics within the Group to express an opmion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are reapan:tlhle for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audic
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

W communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planmed scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencics in internal
control that we identify during our andit

Wi also provide those cherged wilth governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and o communicate with them all relationships amd other
matters that may reasonably be thought o bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
o eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance m the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the cument period and
are therefore the key audit mafters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation prechedes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matier should not be communicated i our report because the adverse consequences of
daoing so would reasonably be expected o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

for Ernst & Young Professional Services

- e i e — 7
S _;;—E‘__\ =
Hesham A, Alatigi
Certified Public Accountant , Ex._
License Mo, (523) 1o O
T -
Rivadh: 7 Ramadhan 1445H ST

(17 March 2024)



Saudi Chemical Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As al 31 December 2023

2023 2022
MNeda ER "000 ER 000
Assats
Non= current assets
FProperiy, plant and equipmant B 423,519 428,073
Capital work in progress 6 735,653 703 868
Intangible assels and goodwill T 608, THE 614218
Right-of-use assels B 15,450 18,337
Investmeant in a pint venlurs g 4,122 750
Darivative financial instruments 10 1,780 4,198
Total non- current assets 1,790,290 1,770,942
Current assets
Inventones 11 1,100,577 1,107 952
Trade receivables 12 1,758,090 1,513,481
Armounits due from a related party 212 - 3,668
Propayments and other current assets 13 123,264 148,864
Cash and cash equivalents 14 134,109 81,215
Total current assets 3,116,440 2,666,220
Liabilities and equity
Equity
Share caplial i5 B43,200 843,200
Staluary resane 18 341 BEB 3418638
General resanse 1T 140,000 340,000
Retained eamings 21518 134 815
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,800,287 1655353
Man-controling interesis 8801 _ 7878
Total Equity 1,809,088 1 BET,EEE!
Liabilities
Mon=current liabilities
Long ferm Islamic lnans 8.3 340,352 405,000
Saudi Indusirial Development Fund's financing — non-current 18.1 301,021 334,114
Ledse kabilities = non-cumant 19 11,159 13,754
Emplovees defined benefit kabilities 20 ~ 60,858 56,532
Total non-current liabilities 713,431 809,400
Current liabilities
Saudi Indusiral Development Fund's financing — current 18.1 33,094 24,751
Lease liabilities - current 18 4,528 4 450
Long-term loans - curreni 18.3 99,608 35,000
Short-term Islamic loans 18.2 436,676 589,961
Trade pavables 1,505,245 1,148.417
Accrued sxpenses and other curran| liabilities 22 186,411 131,338
Amounts due to a relabed party 21.2 12,537 13,313
Zakat and income tax payable 231 50,6848 57147
Dividends payable 34 55424 55,466
Total current liabilities 2,384,211 2,158,803
Total liabilities 3,007,642 2,068 303
Total aquity and liabilities ~ : 4,906,730 4,637 162
Samch Hassan lﬁ- Thamer ALMuhaid Eng. Fahad 5. AI-Jlrbm
Greap CFO Croup CEC Chairman of BOD
Tha attachad notas 3-4a 3f form an megrel pan of thase consalidated financial statements,
7

)



Saudi Chemical Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Year Endad 31 Decamber 2023

Revenues
Gost of revenuas

Gross profit

Selling and dislribulion expanses
Genaral and administrative expanses
Expecied credit loss on trade receivaldes

Operating profit

Finance costs

Finance income

Ofiher (expenses) incomea, nel

Share of profit in a joint venture

Foreign cumrency exchange lasses
Revaluation (loss) gains on dervative financial
imstrurments

Profit before zakat and income tax

Zakat and incoma tax expansa
Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Mon-controlling interasls

Basic and diluted eamings per share {SR)

10

3

2023 2032
SR ‘000 SR 000

4 854 B4R 3,695 868
i4,182,187) (3,208 213)
BT2.661 487 655
(167,439) (150 483}
(124,024) (102,465)
63 (48 267)
317,342 177410
(94, 561) (58,432)
111 405
(1,394) 3,040
3,872 -
{5,152) {12.454)
{2,418) 4198
217,800 114,187
{33,668) (33,180)
184,132 80987
182,886 B0.223
1,246 764
184,132 B0,987
0.22 0.10

Eng. Fahad 5. Al-Jarbou
Chadrman of BOD

Sameh Hissan
Geroup CFO)

The attachad notes 1 1o 37 form an infegral pan of these consolidated financial statements.

Eng. Thamer Al-Muabaid
Group CEO




Saudi Chemical Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

Profit for the year
Dther comprehensive [loss) income

ftems that will nof be reclassified subsequently fo
profif or losa:

Remeasuwramant (loeg) gain on defined benafit

plans
DOther comprehensive (loss) income for the

year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Mor-cantrolling interests

20.1

2023 2022
SR '000 SR ‘000
184,132 80,887
{317} 4,210
£l = 4,210
183,815 85,197
182,564 84,412
. ias1 00 TES
183,815 85,197

Samech Hassan Eng, Thamer Al-Muhaid

Group CFO Group CEO

Eng. Fahad 5. Al-Jarbou
Chadrman of BOD

The attached notes 1 to 37 form an integral par of these consclidated financial stalements.




Saudi Chemical Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 31 Decembser 2023

As at 1 January, 2022

Prodit for the year

Othar comprehensive incoma
Total comprahensive income
Tranafer o statubory reserde

Dividends {nofe 34}

A5 at 31 Decambar 2022

As at 1 January 2023
Profit for the year

As at 31 December 2023

Sameh Hassan
Cirmup CFO

Attributable fo the equity holders of the parent

Share Statufory Genaral Refadne Aan-cornmiing Tolal
ciailial Rpsorne PRSI EE BETTUTS Tolal infarasis Exquity
SRO00 SR000 SR'DO0 SR00G SED00 SR'000 SR000
B3, 200 Jd3, 640 S, 0 100,585 1,817,831 T.ET 1,025,248
= - - B0,223 80,223 T4 80,08
- - 4,188 4.184 2 421
- - - B 412 B4 412 TES 85187
- B.022 - (8,023} A 5 -
2 - = (42, 160) (42.180) [426) {42,586)
843200 341 BE5A 40,000 134 815 1,858,883 7578 1,687,858
843,200 341,868 340,000 134,815 1,659,883 7,976 1,667,858
. . " 162,885 162,666 1,248 1641
- - (322} {322 5 (317
- - 182 564 182,564 1,251 183815
S - 421800 (42.150) 428)  (42,388)
43,200 341,868 340,000 ITs 218 1,800,287 B.801 1,808,

-

Eng. Thamer Al-MMuhald
Garnap CEDY

Th attachad notes 1 16 37 form an indegral part of Shese consdlidated financial siatamants

Eng, Fahad 5. Al-Jarbou

Chalrman of BOD

10



Saudi Chemical Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For tha Year Ended 31 Decembar 2023

2023 2022
Nate ER"000 SR
Operating activities
Profit balore zakat and Income tax 217,800 114,167
Adjustmierts for-
Amartization of intangible ssseis T E627 2104
Depraciation of propary, plant and aguipmsent i 36,882 38232
Crapraciation of righi-of-use assels B 3,887 3.1
[Gain} ! lo2s on dispesal of proparty, plant and aquipsment 28 (B30) 196
Share of profit i a joint venture a [3,872) -
iveanionies . 11 Z8,120 27 040
cradit lags on trade recedvabilos 12 63,856 48,267
Proision Tor employess defined benefit obligation 20 T.145 B 663
Write-off of propety, plant, and equipment (] 1.912 -
Revaluation loss [ (Gain) on dervative Snancial ingtruments 10 Z41E {4,198)
Finance costs Fi 84,561 58,432
457,506 297,633
Workdng caplial chenges:
Irvaniones (21,105) 23,229
Account recelivablas (08 465) 53,242
FPrepayment and oiher asseis 26,600 54,470
Trade payabile 156 628 347 109
Accrnued expenses and othor liabilitins 51,333 23,340
Amouniz diss 1o/ from a reliafed parly, nat 2892 (3,418}
Cash generated from oparations 565 580 TGS 602
dofined banefit obligation paid 20 {5,371} (B, 8024
Zakat and incoms tax pakd 21 [40,17T) (22312
Finance cost pald [87.018) (57 .840)
Met cash generated from operating activities 433033 TOT 148
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of proparty, plant and eguipmant L {8,356) (7,580}
Purchase of intangible asseis 7 {1,175)  (140,249)
Purchase of capital work in progress 3 [B6T.583)  (112.229)
Proceed from cusioms refund 13,526
Initial imvestment in & joint venture - (250
Proceeds irom disposal of property, planl. and equipmen & k] i
Het cash used In investing activities [(B2680) (260177}
FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Sawdi Industrial Developmeni Fund's fnancing 18.1 {29,000} (7,158)
Faymeni of pnncipal portion of lease (Bbdites ] {2,528 (2, 738)
Repayrenl al shorl-besrm [slamie loans 18.2 (252, 208)  [(B44 454)
Proceeds from lang-term lslarmic loans 183 - 440,000
Dividends paid 10 equity holders of the parent (42.202) (42,162)
Dividands paid 1o ndn-cantralling inbaresis (426) __[426)
Met cash used In financing activities (327.439) (456,850}
Increass {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 42 804 (3,979}
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year 21,215 101,184
Cash and cash equivalants at the and of the year 134,109 1215
SIGHIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS:
Additions io righl-ol-uso assols 8 - 10,531
Additions io leass Eabiifies 18 - 10,330
Trarsker fram capital work in progress to propedy, plant, and eguipmant B 23,040 1.558
Amorined finance oost capitalized o constructions In progress a 2, 682 12113
Remeasuramant (loss) gain on defined benefil plans " 20 (317) 4.210
1]
Sameh Hassan Eng. ?‘:m-lr ANl b Eﬂﬂ-.- Fahad 5, AlJarbom
Gr Group CECQ Clhairman of BOD
Thi attachad 1 ferm an indegral part of theee consolidated finencial statemants

o ”

/



Saudi Chemical Holding Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 Decamber 2023
1. ACTIVITIES

Saudi Chemical Halding Company (the “Company”) = a Saudl Joint Stock Company registened in Riyadh,
Kingdom of Sawdi Arsbia, under commercial registratiion number 1010006161 dated 12 Safar 1392H
(correspanding to 28 March 1972). The registerad office of the Company is: P.O. Box 2665, Rivadh 11461,
Kingdem of Saudi Arabia, The Group is listed In Tadawul stock exchange,

The Company and it subsidiaries (collectively refemed 1o as the "Group") are principally engaged in

+  Managing the subsidianes or participating in the management of olher imestess and providing the
requirad suppor for these entities and real estate ownership,

= Manufacturng and selling of explosives and their derivatives for civil or military uses and providing

fechmical support senvices in explosions,

=  Manufacturing, wholesale and retail trading in medicines, medical materialz and syrups, pharmaceutical
preparations, medical and surghcal looks and equipment, supplies of haspitals and medical centers and

itz related spara parts and food itams; and
s Manufaciure of ammarkdum nitrata,

Thase consclidated financial statements include the financial statesments of the Commpany and of its following

subsidiaries
Cwnership %
31 Decamber 31 Decarnbar
; Courdry af

Subsmary 4 oot Aain Acthly 2023 27
Sadi Inbesnalicnal Tradeng
Company (*SITCO Phama™) K54 Distrinution of Medicines Ga%, ah%
Sz inbematianal Nilrate
Company SINCO" Eqypk Production of Armmeonium Nirabe 100% 100%
Chemical Compary for Wholesale and refail rade in
Commercial Investmant Limied miedicines, cosmetics, pﬂll.l'l'lﬂﬂ.
CEILT) beauty suips, medical fools, and

KiSA olher supplias 10 1005
Add Plarmacessdicals Industness Panufachurng phamneceulics
Company Limited (*AJ4 Fharma®) products, packaging and storing of

medizines, and other medical

ESA producis 104 100%%
Saunli Cheamical Comgany Limited E=iablishment, manifachmng &
["SCCL™) T Cranership of explosives faclkoies 100%: 100%

During 2022, the subsidiary *Chemical Company for Commercial Investment Limited” invested in a Supply

Chain for Logistics Services Company (Noie 2),




Saudi Chemical Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (TFRS") that are endorsed m the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and
pronouncements that are endorsed by the Saudi Orgamzation for Ghartered and Professional Accountants
[*SOCPA") (colectively referred to as "IFRSs as endorsed in Kingdom of Sawdi Arabia"),

Thesa consolidated financial statements hawve been prepared undaer the historical cost convention, unleas
slated othapsisa in the below acsounting policies, The cansolidated financlal stalemants are presented in
Saudi Riyals ("5R"), which g the functional, and prezentstion currency of the Group and all values are
rounded io the nearest heusand Saud| Rivals, except whan olharsse indicated,

The praparation of the consolidated financial stalaments In accordance with IFRSs as endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia requires the use of certsin significant accounting estimetes. it also requires
managemant to exercisa its judgment in the procass of applying the Group’s accounting pobicies. The areas
invalving & higher degree of judgment or complexty, or areas where gssumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Mate 4.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprse the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiarias
as at 31 December 2023, Controd is achieved when the Group is exposed, o has rights, to variable raturns
from its involvermsant with the inveslee and has the ability to affec! thoss returns through its powear aver the
investee. Specifically, the Group corfrols an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

e Power over the investes (e exisling nghts that give it fe currend ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investes);

« Exposure, or rights, o variable relurns from s involvement with the investes;

= The ability to use its power over the investes to affect its returns,

Gerarally, there is a presumption that & majorty of woling rights results in control. Te support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a8 majarity of the voling or similar ights of an investes, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in asseassing whether it Fas power over an invesize,
incheding:;

» The confractual arrangement{s) with the other vole holders of the investee;
» Rights arising from other contractual arangemanis;
« The Group's voling rights and polential voling rights.

The Group re-aszasses whelher or nol it confrols an nvestes if facks and cireumstances indicate thal thede
are changes o one or more of the three elemenis of conirol. Consolidation of a8 subsidiary beging when
the Group oblains control over the subsidiary and ceases whan the Group loses condrol of the subsidiary.
Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the penod are
incleded In the consolldaled nancls statements from e date the Group gains conirl unid the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiany.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income ("OCI1Y are attributed 1o the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and non-controlling mierest, even if thes results o the non=-controlling
intereat hawng a defict balance. When necessary, adustmaents are made (o the consolidated financial
slatements of subsidiades to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies,
All intra-group assete and Eabilites, equity, Bcome, expanses and cash fliows relating to transactions
batwaen mambers of the Group are slimmatad in full on consolidation,

A changea in tha ocswnership inlerest of a subsidiary, withoul & loss of contral, is accounted far as an equity,
If the Group loses confrol owver a subsidiary. it derecognisas the related assets {(including goodwill),

liabilities, non-contredling interest and other components of eguity, while any resultant gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any imvestiment retained is recognised at fair value.
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Saudi Chemical Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2023

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The foiowing are the significant accounting policies appled by the Group In prepanng ks consolidated
financial statemants.

4.1 Business combinations and goodwil |

Business combinations are accounted for using the acouisition method, The cost of an acguisiton is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisiion date fair
value, and the amount of any ron-controlling interests in the acquires, For each business combination, the
Group elacis whether to measure the non-controlling intereais in the acguiree at fair value or at the
proporionate share of the acquires's identifiable net assels. Acquisition-redaled costs are expersed as
incurred and included in administrative expanses.

When the Group scguires a business, | assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed Tor
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circemstances and perlinent condifions as al the acouisiton date,

Ary contnoent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the
acquision date, Contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subseqguent
seltlement is accounted for within eguity, Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is
a financial instrument and within the scope of IFRS 2 Financial Ingtruments, is measured at fair value with
the changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 2. Cther
contingent consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9 is measured at Tair value at each reporting
date with changes in fair value recognised in profil or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controfling interests and any previous interest held over ihe net
identifiable assets acguired and Rabilitves assumed}. [T the fair value of the net assets acquired is in escess
of the aggregate consideration transfemed, the Group re-assesses whether It has cormrectly kdentified ail of
the asszets acquired and all of the lEabikities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts o be recognised at the acquisition date, If the reassesament stil results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired owver the aggregate consideration tranafemed, then the gaim i3 recognised n
profit or loss,

After indtial recognition, goodwill s measured al cost less any accumulated impairmant Deses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquistion date,
allocated o each of the Group's cagh-generating units that are expected o benefit from the combination,
imaspective of whather olher asssts or liabdibies of the acquiree are assigned Lo those unifs,

Where goodwil has besn aliocaled fo a cash-generaling wunit (*CGEU") and part of the operation withiin that
unit iz dizsposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when detarmining the gam ar lass on disposal. Goodwill dizposed in thess circumestances
is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-gererating
unit redainad.

3.2 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and Habiliies in the consolidated statement of financial position bazed on
currant'non-cumant classiication. An assel is current whan it i

expectad to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

held primarily for the purpose of frading

expected o be realized within bwelve months after the reporting penod or

cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to sefile a llability for at least
bwelve months after the reporting period.

® O @B B

All ethar assets e classHied as non-currant,
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Saudi Chemical Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2023

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Current versus non-current classification (continued)

A liabily is cument when.

= il is expected to be setiled i the nomal operating cycle

o (tis hald primarily for the purpose of trading

= ftis dueto be setiled within bwelve months after the reparting penod or

» 1here i3 no unconditional right 1o defer the setliernent of the liabiliky for at least twelve months afier the
reporting pered.

Tha Group classihiaes all cther lishilties as non-currernt

3.3 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabiligy in an orderly
tramsaction betwean market padicipants at the measurement date, Tha fair value measuremant is based on
the presumption that the transaction 1o sell the assel or transher the: a0ty takes place edther

« Inthe principal mamet for the assed or liability or

* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

Tha princpal or tha most advanmageocus marked mest be accessibie by the Group.

The Tar value of an assal or a labllity is measured using the assumplions that marke! participants would use
when pricing an aaset or & liahility, assuming that market paricipants act in their economic best interest

Afar value measurement of & non-financial assets takes nto account a market paricipant's ability to generate
aeconomic benefits by using the asset inits highest and best use or by seling i ta anothar markat paticipan
that would use the assel in itz highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation lechnigues that are approprate in the cireumslances and for which sufficient data
ana available o measws fair value, maximising lhe use of relavart cbhservable npuls and minemising the use

of unobservable inpuls.

All 2esats and labilities for which Tair value is measured of disciosed inthe consolidated NMinancial slatements

are calegorized within the fair value herarchy, described as folkows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant o the fair value measurameant as a whols:

= Leval 1 —Quoted [uradusted ) markst prices in active markets for identical assats or liatilities

» Level 2—Valuation techniques for which 1he owest level input that i3 significamt to the fair value
measunement is direcily or indireclly observabila

« Level 3—Valualion lechnigues for swhich ihe owest leval inpul that is significant 1o the fair value
measurement 5 unobsenabie,

For assels and Habdities thet are recognsed in the consalidated financiel statements at fak value on a
recurring basis, the Group detarmines whather transfers have occurred bebween leveds in the hiararchy by
re-assesaling categorsation (based on the lowest level input that s significant to the Fair valies measurement
83 a whaola) at the end of each reporting period. The Group determines the policies and procedures for both
racurring far value measurement and for RON-FECUEMNG MEasurement.

Al gach reporting date, the Group analyses the movements in the vakses of assets and labdities which ane
required to be remassured of re-assesssd as perthe Group's accounting policies. Forthis anahysis, the Group
verifies the major inputs applied in the |lalest valualion by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation 1o confracts and other relevant documeants,

The Group slso comparas the change inthe fair value of each asset and lizhility with relevant external sources
o determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and fiabililies based
an ihe nafure, characterstics and risks of an assel or 8 lisbilty and level of the far value hierarchy as

explained above,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2023

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.4 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognides fevanue from contracts with cuslomers based on a ive-slap modsl as sel oul in
IFRS 15, Revenue ks recognized based on the consideration specified In a contract with & customer and
exchidss amounis collecled on behalf of third parties. Thea Group recognizes revenue when it transfars
contred over & product or services to a customess,

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or senvices are fransferned
to the customer a8t an amaunt that reflects the cansidaration o which the Group expacis 1o be anfitted in
exchange for those goods or services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the pancipal in iz
revende arrangaments, because it typically contrals the goods or sarvices before fransfaming them to the
cusiomer and I8 required to pay third-party suppdiers aven If cusiomers faill to pay. IF the Group sells goods
or sarvices as an agent, revenus and paymenls to suppliers are recorded in revenue on a nat basis,
representing the mangin earned. The Group asSesses its revenue arangements against specfic criterda o
determire if it is acting as principal or agent.

Sale of goods = othar than pharmaceufical amd related producs

Revenue is measured at ihe feer value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of gonds in
the ordinary course of the Group’s actviies. The Group recognises revenue when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the products are defivered to the customer, the cusiomer has full discretion owver
the use or sale of such geoods, and there is no unfufiled cbligation that could affect the customer's
acceplance of the goods, Delivery cccurs when the goods have been shipped fo the specific location as
per the terms of the contract, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer,
ard either the customer has accepled the products in accordance with the sales confract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
salisfied.

Revenue recognized B measured st the fransaction price as agresed mn the sales contract net of value
added tax. The tranzaction price iz adjuested for any varable conzideration in the form of price concessions,
discounts, rebates, refunds, credits sle. The Group estimates the variable consideralion as the expactesd
value of the likely transaction price adjustment. The Group includes in the fransaction price some or all of
an armaunt of variable eonsideration astimated only to the axtent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulaiive revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty essociated
with thi varable consideration is subsequently resalved.

Sale of goods — pharmaceutical and related products

This imvohves the sales of pharmaceulical and related products 1© hospitals and pharmacies. The Group
doas not establish the prices for the phamaceutical and related products scid as both the purchase and
selling prices for all pharmaceutical and related products are fixed by the Saudi Food and Drug Authority,
excepi for un-priced items.

Revenue from services
Revenue is recognised, when the Group satisfies the performance obligations &s specified in the condract
with the customer, when the seller has ransferred to the customer the promised services, aither:

® at apaoint in tme, or

= over atime basis, equivalent to the stage of the complation of service

The Group considers whether thare are other promises in the conract that are separale pedformanca
obligations to which a porticn of the iransaction price needs 1o be allocated. In determining the transaction
price, the Group considers the effects of varable consideration, the existence of significant financing
components, noncash consideration, penafties, and consideration payable i the customer (F any),

Variable consideration

In detarmining the transaction price, the Group considers the effects of varable consideration H the
consideration in a contract includes 8 variable amount, the Group estimstes the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferming the products and services fo the customer, The variable
corsideration s estimaied at contract imceplion and constrained wntil it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulatve revenue recognized wil not occur when the associated
uncerfainty with the vanable consideration is subsequently raschad.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2023

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.5 Zakat and Taxes

Lakat

Zakatl s provided for In accordance with Zekal, Tax and Cusioms Authority ("ZATCA") regulaticns In the
Kingdom of Saudi Amabia. Zakat provision is estimaled and charged to the consolidated statement of income,
Any differences in the estimations B recorded when the final assessment 15 approved al which tims the
pronision is adjustad. Zakat iz calculated on a consclidated basis for the Company and its 100% lagalky owned
subsidiaries. Accordingly, the Company and §s 100% legally owned subsidiaries are considered as a single
antity for the purposes of Zakat calculation. As for the subsidianes which are lasa than 100% owned by the
Company, Zakal & caloulated on a standalone basis.

Current and deferred laxes
Tax related to subsidiaries located oulside the Kingdom & calculsted in accordance with tax laws applicable

in thome countries

Dafamed Income fax provisions for foreign erlities are calculated using the Eabiity method, based on
temporary differences at the end of the financial year between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carmying values for inancial reporting purposas. Dalarmed (ax Eabdities and defermad lax assals e measuned
at the tax rates expected to be applied in the reporting period in which the obligation is seitled, or the asseals
is realized.

Ceferred {ax azsets of foreign enlibkes are recognized only to the extent that it s probable thad fulure laxable
profita will be evailable against wihich the iemporary differences can be utilzed. This meolves & judgemrent
ralaling to the futura linancel parfformance of the foraign antity in which the defarred tax assels have been
recognized, Defered tax labiities are generally recognized for all temporary differences that are taxabla.

The current moome tax i recognized inthe consofidatied statement of profit or loss,

Value Adoed Tax ("'VAT")

Experses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, axcept;

= When the VAT Incumed on @ purchase of assets o services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case, the VAT s recognised as part of the cost of scquisition of the asset or as part of the
axpense item, as applicable; andior

= When recetvebles and payables are stated with the amount of VAT incheded,

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the faxation autharity is inclhuded as part of
receivables or pavables in the consolidated statement of financial position,

Withhalding tax
The Group also withholds taxes in the H:ngﬂl}m aof Saud| Arabda on cenain ransactions with non=resicent
parties as required undar the Saudi Arabian Income Tax Law,

A8 Foreign currencies
Transactions and balances
Forsign curancy transactions ara translated into Saudl Rivals using the exchange rates prevalling af the
dates of the transactions, Foreign exchange gains and kosses resuliing from fhe zettlerment of such
transactions and from the translation at the vear-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies other than Seudi Rivals are recognised in the profit or loss
The resulis and financial position of the Group's enfities thal hawve a funclional curmency differant from the
presentation currency are transkated info the presentation cumency as follows:
# |tems of equily (excepl retainsd eamings and non=cortralling nterest) are ranskted at the rate
prevaiing on the acquisifion date,
Azzets and lishilfies are translated using the exchenge rate prevailing at the reporting date,
Statement of income ifems ane franslated using the weighted average rate for the vear. Material gains
and losses are lranslated at tha rate prevailing an tha date of thair coourmenca.
= Al resuliing exchange differences, if matenal, are recognized as a separate component of equity.

When those entities are partially sold or disposed of, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognized n the consalidated statement of income as part of the gains or lossas on s53le.

17




Saudi Chemical Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2023

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.7 Cash dividends
The Group's dividands palicy is approved by the General Assermbly and tha Group recognizes a liability o
pay a dividend when the distribution Is suthonzed, A comesponding amount is recognized direcly in equity,

3.8 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment iz stated at cosi, net of accurmulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, f any, Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equlpment and borrowing cosls
far long-term construction projacts if the recognition crteria are met.

Cepreciaton is calculated on all property and eguipment, other than land and capital work-in-progress, st the
follewing uzeful lves caleulated 1o wrile off the cosl of each assel on a straighl-line basis over s expected
uzedul fife:

Uizeful life
Bulidings and infrastruciure cos! 20-33
Leasahokd improvemanls The aslimated usaful life or lease period whichaver is lowar
Machinery & equipmeant 710
Fumiture & fixtures =10
vahiclas and transportation equipment 4

The Group reviews 1he estimaied residual values and expecled useful kves of assets al l2ast annually. In
particular, the Group considars the impadt of {ha plans of the business and levels of expenditurs incurmed on
an ongoing basis o maintain the property and equipment in its assesament of expected useful lives anmnd
astimaled rosidual valuees,

When signifeant parts of propery, plant and equipment are required to be replaced al intervals, the Group
depreciates them separaiely bazed on their specific useful lives, Likewise, when & major inspection iz
perfarmad, its cost is recognised in the camying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacament if the
recognition cfiteria are satisfied. All ather repair and maintenance costs ame recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. Major spare parts qualify for recognilion as poperty and eguipment vihen the Group expects to use
them during more than one year. Transfers are made to relevant operating assets category as and when
such items are available for use.

Anilem of property and eguipmant is de-recognized upon disposal or whan no future econcmic benefils are
expected from its use or disposal. Amy gain or les2 arising on de-recogndion of the asset (calculated as the
difference batween the nel dizgposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset) is included in the
consolidated siatement of income under other operating income when the asset is de-recognized,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewsed
at @ach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, I appropriate.

3.9 Capital work in progress

Capital wirk in progress Is siated al cost less accumulated Imparment kass, if any, Capital wark in progress
{"CWIPT) represants assels under conslruction, recorded at cost bess any recognized mpaiment loss, Gost
inchades cost of equepment, matedal, professional fees and other costs dirscty attributablde 1o bringing the
asset to the locabon and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intendad by
managemant and for gualifying assets also includes, borrowing costa capitalized in aceordance with the
Group's accounting polcy. \When commissionad, capital work in progress is lmnsferred Lo the appropriate
property and equipment azset category and depreciated in accordance with the Group's policies.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.10 Leases
The Group assesses al conlracl incaption whether a conbract is, or conlairs, a kease. That is, if the conlract
conveys the right to contral the use of an dentified asset for a period of time In exchange for consideration,

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shor-term
leases and leases of [ow-value assels, The Group recognises leass labilitkes 1o make lease payments and
right-of-ues aasets representing tha right to use the underying asseta.

Right-of-uss assets

The Group recognises righi-of-use assels at the commencement date of the lease (Le., the date the
underlying aaset o available for uae), Right-of-use asseis are maasured at cost, less any accumulated
dapreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasuramant of leasa liabilities. The cost of
right-of-uze aszets includes the amount of leaze liabilties recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and leaze
payments mada st or befora the commencemant date kees any leass incentives raceived. Unlags the Group
i= reasonably certain to obtain cwnarship of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised
rfight-of-use assels are depraciated on a straighi-line basis ovar the sharter of s estimalted useful life ar
lease term, Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment

Lease liabilities

Al the commencemen! dale of the leass, the Group recognises leasa liabilibes measured al the pressent
value of lease paymenis (o be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed paymenis
{including in substance fixed paymeanis) less any lease ncentives recenvable, varighla lkase paymeants that
depend on an index of a rate, and amounts expected fo be paid under residual value guaraniees. The
leasa payments also include the exercise prica of a purchasea opban reasonably certain o be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
the oplion 1o lerminate. The vanable lease payments that do nol depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expense in the pericd on which the event or condition that niggers the payment occurs

In catcukating the present value of leass payments, the Group uses the incremantal borowing rate at the
lease commeancement date if the inerest rate implicit n the leaze B not readily deferminable. After the
commencemeant date, the amount of lease labiites is increased to reflect the accration of Interest and
reduced for the lease payments made, In addition, the camying amount of lease liabiities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lsase paymeants or
a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assels

The Group applies the shor-term lease recognition exemption to its shor-term leases of machinery and
aquipment (e, those leases thal have a lease lerm of 12 months o less from he commencement dale
and do not contain e purchase option), [t also applies the lzase of low-value assels recognition exemiption
to leases of office equipmeni that are considered of low value {i.e,, below SR 20,000). Lease payments on
shaort-term leases and eazes of low-value assets are recognized as expense an a atraight-line basis owver
the laasa tarm

Significant judgemant in determining the lsase term of contracts with renewal oplions

The Group detarmines the leaze tarm as the non-cancellable term of the leaze, together with any pariods
coverad by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably carlsin to be exarcised, or any pericds covared
by an option to terminate the kease, | it is reasonably certain not fo he exencised,

311 Borrowing costs

Bormowing cosls directly Stfribulable to the scquistion or conslruction of an asset thal necsssanly takes a8
substantial pericd of time to get ready for its intended use or safe ane capitalised as pan of the cost of the
azsets. All cther barmowing costs are expansed in the penod in which they coour, Bormowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an enfity incurs in connection of the borowing of funds,
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3.12 Intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangibde assals acquired separalely are measurad on initial recogniticn al cost. The cosl of inlangible assals
acquired in a business combination is thelr fair valee &l the date of acquisiton, Following Intial recognition,
intangible assats are carred at cosl less any accumulated amorbisation and accumulated impaimment lossas.
Internally generated intangibles, excdluding capitalissd development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflacted in profit or loss i the period in which the expendiure is incumed,

The wseful lwes of intangible asseis are aeseszsed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible aessets with finite lves are amortized ower the useful economiz |fe and azsessed for impairment
whanever thers is an indicalion that the intargible asset may be impaired, The amortisation perod and the
amartisation meathod for an intangble asset with a finita ussful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected usaful Iife or the expecied paltern of consumplion of future
economic benelits embodied in the asset are considered 1o modify the amordisation perod or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amartisation expense on intangible
assets with finite ives is recognised in the consolidaled statement of profit or loss in the expanse category
that iz consistent with the function of the intargible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amorised, bui are tested for impaiment annually, either
individualy or al the cash-generating unit level The assessment of indefinite e s reviewed annually to
determing whether the indefinite life confinues to be supportable. If mot, the change in useful ife from indefinte
ta finite is made on & prospective basis.

An Intangible asset is darecognised upon disposal (Le., at the date the recipient chilains coniral) or when no
future economic benefis are expected fram ks use or disposal. Amy gain or ioss ansing upon derecognition
of the assel (calculaled a= the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the canrying amount of the
asset) s Inchuded in the consolidated statemesnt of profit or loss,

Intangible assefs with Tnite wseful lives are amartized using siraighi-line method over her estimated useful
lives ga follows:

Usaful Nfe
Computer softwars &8
Brand Key money &
Dither intangible assels 25

313 Financial instruments

A financial instument is any confract that gives rise to a financial essat of one entity and a financial liabdity
or equity instrument of another entity.

Finandcial a35e0s

initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
thraugh other comprehensive income ["FVOCE) or fair value through profit or loss ("FWVTPLT),

The clazsification of financial asseta at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's confractual cash
fiow charsclenstios and the Group’s business model for maraging theme With the excsplion of rade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing componant or for which the Group has applied the
practcal expedient, the Group initlafly measures a financial assat al its falr value plus, in the case of a financlal
azset nof at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
signilican financing component or Tor which the Group has applisd the practical expedient are measured at
the ransaction price determined under IFRS 15 Revenue from confracts with customers.

In oeder for a financial assal o be classed and maeasured al amoriEed cost of FVOCH, 1T nesds Lo give rise
to cash fiows that are solely payments of principal and interast ("SPP17) on the principal amount cutstanding,
This assessment & referred 1o 85 the SPPILesLand s performed at an instrument ievel, Financial assets with
cash flows thel are not SPPI are dassified and measured at fair value throwgh profit or loss, mespective of
the business modeal.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.13 Financial instruments (continued
.F.rmmﬂa.l assels :’mnﬂnuatf)

T|'IE Group's I:I{EII'I'EFEH mcrl:lﬂl for managlng ﬁaanmal assats refens 10 how R manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
condractual cash flows, selling the financial assets. or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amartised cost are held within 2 business model with the objective 1o hold financial assels in order o colled
condractual cash fiows while financial aseats clasaified and measured at fair value throwgh GGl are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to colled confractual cash flows and salling.

Purchases o sales of financial assels that require delvery of assets within a ime frame established by
reguiation or convention in the market place {regular way trades) are recognisad on the frade dale, e, the
date that the Group commits to purchasa or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, the Group classifies its financial assels into financial assets at

amortised cost calegories:

Nars ¥
Afinancial asset (or, where appicable, 8 part of a financlal 38set of part of a group of simiar inancal assets)
i= primarily derecognised (i.e., rermoved from the Group's consolidated statement of financial positon) when:
= The rights 1o recaive cash flows from the asset have expired or

« The Group has fransferred its rights to receve cash flows from the asse! or has assumed an obligation
o pay the recewed cash flows in full without material delay to a thied pardy under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and eithar (a) the Group has fransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b} the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the rsks and rewards of the assat
bul has transfemad cantrod of tha assel,

When the Group has transfarmed its righls 1o necaive cash Nows Troem an assel or has enterad inlo a pass-
through arangament, it evaluates i, and to what extent, it has retaned the risks and rewards of ownership,
Wihien it has naither transfemed nor redained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, nor transfemed
contred of the asset, the Group continues Lo recognise the transfered asset 1o the extent of i3 continuing
invohyement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transfemed asset and the
associated llability are measured on a basis that reflects the righls and obligations that the Group has
ratainad.

Corntinwing invoheemsant that takes the form of a guarantee ovearthe transferred azest iz measured st the lower
of the original carnying amaunt of the assel and the maximum amaount of consideration that the Group could
be raquired o repay

e

Tha Group recognisas an allowancs for expectied cradd lossas ((ECLs") for all debt nstrumeanis not helkd at
fair value through profit or loss, ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance wilh the contract and all the cash flows thal fhe Group expects to recaive, discounted al an
approimation of the onginal effective interest rate, The expected cash flows will incliede cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credl enhancements thal are integral to the coniractual erms.

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs, Therefore, the Group
dosas Pol rack changes in credil riss, bul instead recognisas a loss allowance basaed on [ifedima ECLS at each
reporting date. The Group has estebiished a provision matrix that s based on its historical credit loss
axpariences, adusted for fonvard-locking factors specific o he deblors and the econamic anvionmenl

The Group sonsider a finandal asset for impairment testing when inlemal or extermal information indicates
that the Sroup is unbkely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancerments held by the Group, A financial asset i written off when there is no reasonable
aexpectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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3.13 Financial instruments (continued

Financial fabilities

{nitfal recognitien and messurement

Finandial fabilikes are classified, at nitial recognition, as financial Babilibes at fair value throwgh profit or loss,
loans and borrewings, or payables, as sppropriate,

All financial labilfies are recognised initlally al far value and, In the case of bans and borowings and
payables, net of directly affributeble fransaction costs. The Group's financial Eabifities includes trade
pavables, accrued expenses and other liablites, lease Eabiities, long term bomowings and shori-term
bormowings.

Subsequen measurrman

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial labidities are classfied as financial iabiities at amorised
cost (loans and bomowings ). Aftar inifial recognition, mteresi-bearing loans and borrowings ane subsequantly
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses ane recognised in profit or loss when
thie liabilites are carecognised as wel as thraugh the EIR amortisatbon procsass,

Amortized cost is calculated by [aking inte accound any discount or premium on acquisibon and fees or cosis
that are an integral par of the EIR. The EIR amodisation & included as finance costs in the statement of profit
of less This category generally applies to inferest-beaning loans and bofrowings, trade payablas, acorued
expenses and other lkabiites.

Deracognition

Afinancial [Eability is deracognised whan the obligation under the liability is discharged of cancalled or expires.
Wnen an existng financial liability is replaced by another from the same ender an substantially different
terms, or the terms of an exisiing Bability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecagnition of the arginal Habilly and the recognition of a new lizbily, The difference in the
respectve carmying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

214 Offsetting of finencial instruments

Financial assels and finandal labilties are offsel, and the net amount 15 reparted In the consclidated
slatement of financial position if there iz a cwrently enforceable l2gal right to offast the recognised amounts
arsd there is an intenlion to sefthe on 3 el bagis, 1o realiss the assets and saithe tha labilities simullansocush

318 Inventories

Inventories ara vatued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Costs of inventonas are defemmined using
the weighted average method. Cost includes expenditure incumed in acquiring the Inventories and costs
incurred in bringing them to ther existing location and condition.

Met realizable value s the estimaled selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated oosis of
completion and the estimated costs necassany to make the sale.

Invantories are written down o net realisable vafue where the cost may not be recoverable owing to dameage,
obsolescence, or if the seling proes of the Bems of inventory have daclined, For inventories related to
distributed pharmaceulical products, if mutually agreed wpon and in specific cdroumstances, the Group
recovers the cost from suppliars,

s the ax-factony price or cost, insurance and fresght ("CIF') price of pharmaceutical products are fived by the
Saudi Food and Drug Autharity ("SFDAT), a reduction in the CiF prices of unsold inventory by tha SFDA will
be recoverad from the sueppber, when mutually agreed. Also, when the Group incurs costs refated to nons
supply of products i has committed to sall 1o #s cuslomers as per the contracts  has entered with these
customers. As mutually agreed. the Group recover certain of these costs from the suppiiers.
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316  Impaiment of non-financial asssts

Tha Group assesses, al each reporting dale, whsther thera is an indication thal an asset may be impaired, If
any Indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assed s required, the Group estimaies the
asset's recoverable amount. &n assel's recoverable amount is the Fegher of an assels or CGU far value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual assel, unless
the asset does nol generate cash inflows that are largely indepandeant of those from other assets or group of
assels. When the camying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds s recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and iz written down to its recoverable amount.

In aasessing value in uss, the estimated future cash flowa are discounted to their present value wsing a
discount rate thal reflects current markel assessments of the bme value of monay and the fsks spedfic to
the mzzet. In detemmining fair value less cost of dizposal, recent market tranzactions ars taken nte sccownt.
If ne such rarsactions can be idontified, an appropriaie valuation model & vsed,

The Group bases iz impairment calculalion on mos!t recent budgets and forecast calcudations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are alocated. These
budgats and forecast calculations genarally cover a period of five years. A long-tem growth rale is calculated
and appied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impatrment lo2ses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit o 1088 In expense
calegories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for properies previously revalued with
the revaluation taken o QGL For such properties, e impaiment & recognised in OC) up (o the amount of
any previous revaluation,

For assals excluding goodwill, an assessment s mada at each reporiing dabe to detarmine whathar there |s
an indication that previously recognised impaiment losses no longer exist of have decreased. I such
indication exists, the Group estimates the assels or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impaimment kass is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to defemmine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment boss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying
amount of the asset does nol exceed iis recoverable amount, nor exceed the camying amount thal would
have bean determined, net of depreciation, had ne impairment loss been recognised for the asset In prior
vears, Such reversal is recognised in the consoidated siatemend of profit or loss unless the asset is carmied
at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is ireated as a revaluation increass.

Goochw| il test s carmed out annuslly 1o ensure that theres B ne Impalrment in iz value and when circumstances
indicate the possibllity of a decrease in s book value.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of esch CGEU {or group of CGLUs)
1o which the goodwill relates. When the recoverabde amount of the CGLU is less than ils carrying amount, an
impainment loas is recognised, Impairmment lossea relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods,

3.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consclidated statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and
an hand and shot-term depogite with a matunty of three months or less, that anre readily convertible to s
known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Faor the purposs of the consalidated stalement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalants consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank cverdrafis as they are considered an imtegral
part of the Group's cash managemeani.
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418 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has present obligation (egal or constructive) as a result of past
avent, it s probable that an outhow of resources ambodying economic bamnelits will be reguirad 10 sellle Uhe
obligation and a eliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expecs
some o all of a provision fo be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance condract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate assel, but ondy when the refmbursement s virually cerain, The expense relating
to a provision is presented in the consolidated siatermnant of profit or koss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects current markel assessmeants of the lme value of money and the fsks specific to the labilty.

3.19 Employees’ benefils
The Group operatas a defined banafil plan for employvees in accordance with Sawdi Labor Law as defined by

the conditions stated in e laws of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia These benedits are unfunded. The cost of
providing benafits under the defined benefi plan is determinad wsing the projected unit method,

Re-measurements, comprsing of actuerial gams and |lossas, the effect of the asset celing [exchuding
armmunls nchuded in nel mberesl on the nel defined benshil labdity) and the rstum on plan assels (escluding
amournts included in net Interest on the net defined benefit llabiity), are recognized immediately in the
corsolidabed siatoment of financial posifion with a corresponding debit or credil (o retained eamings throwgh
O in the year end in which they occur, Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loes in subsequent
pariods,

Pasl service costs ame recognized in profit or loss on the sadier of
« The dale of the plan amandment or curailmesnd, and
= Th= date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

The net interast cosi is calculated by apphing the discount rate to the net defined benefit lisbilities or assets

The Group recognizes the lollowing changes in the net defined benefil obligation under “general and

adminisirative expenses” in the consolidated statement of income;

= Service costs comprisang current sendce cosis, past-senice costs, gaing and losses an curtgilments and
non-rautine settlaments, and

= Metinterast expense of iIncomea.

320 Derwvative financial instruments

The Group uses profit rate swaps o hedge the risks associated with profit rates. Hedges that do nod meet
the hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 are measured al FVTPL, Dervatives ara carried as fnancial
assets when the fair value is positive, and as financial kabiities when the fair value is negative. Changes in
the Tair value of derivative financial instruments thal do nol quality for hedge accounting are included in the
consolidated siatemnent of comprehensive income as they anss,

3.21 Investments in joint venturas

A jont wanlure is a joinl amangament whereby the Group has joint condrol of the arrangemeant and bas rghls
to the net assels of the jomt arrangement, Joint control s 1he confractually agreed sharing of control of &n
arrangemant, which exists only when dedsions about the relevant aclivities reguire unamimous consant of
the: governing body of the invesies,

The joint ventures are aceounted for in the consolidaled financial statements of the Group using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the invesiment m joint wentures in the conaclidated
slatemeant of financial posiion are initally recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recoqnize the Group's
shara in the sistament of comprehansine income of the joinl veniure adjustad for any impairment in the value
of the niet investmant. In addEion, when there has been a change recognized directly in the equiy of the joind
vanlure, tha Group recognizes s share of any changes, when applicabés, in the consolidated statemeant of
changes in equity. When the Group's share of losses of a joint venfure exceeds the Group's inferest in that
joint venlure {which includes any long-term interasls that, m subslance, form pad of the Group's nst
investmeant in the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses.
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3.21 Investments in joint ventures (continued)

Additional losses ane recognized and recorded as Rabilities only o the extant thatl the Group has incurmed
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behall of the joint venture,

Linrealzed gain or losses resulting from ransactions between the Group and the joint venture are eliminated
to the extent of the interest inthe joint wvenbana.

The invesimant in joind ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting starting from the
date an which the investes company becomes a point venture, On acquistion of the investment in a joint
vienlure, any excess of the coat of the Inveatment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiakble
assols and Eabiities of the investes is recognized as goodwill, which is incleded within the carryving amount
of tha investrment

Ay excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable azsets and liabilities oweer the cost of
the imvestmard, aftar reassesament, B ecognized immediatsly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensie income in the acouisition year

The requirements of IFRSs endorsed in Kingdom are apphed o determine whether it is necessary to
recognize any mpaimment loss with respect 1o the Group’s imvestment in a joint ventura.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity methed from the date when the imestment ceases 1o be a joint
wveniure, or when the investment is classified as held for sale.

When fhe Group reduces its cwnership inlerest in a joint venture but the Group cortinues o use the equily
method, the Group reclassifies o the consolidated sialement of ncome the gain or loss thatl had previously
been recognized in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in cwnership interest if that gain
o less Incledes the deposal of the related assals or liabiities.

Witsan ary antity within the Group trarsacts with a joinl venture of the Group, profits and losses resulling rom
the fransactions with the joint venlure are recognized in the Group's conscbdated financial statements only
o e extent of interests in the jeint venture that are not related o the Group,

422 New standards, interpretation, and amendments

New and amended standards and interpretations

Fallowing are the standards and amendments effective on 1 January 2023 or after (unless othapsiza
slated) and do nol have a maternal impact on the Group's finrancial statements. The Group has not eary
adopted any cther standard, interpretation or amendment thal has been izzsued but i not vet effective

iE i

IFRS 17 Insurance Conlracls i5 a comprebensive new accountng standard for insurance contracis
covering recognition and measuremeni, presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts. IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts {i.e., e, non-ife, direct insurance and re-
insurance), regardess of the type of entities that issue them as well as to cerain guarartees and financial
Instruments with discretionary participation fealures; a few scope excepbions will apply. The overall
objective of IFRS 17 is o provide a comprehensive accounting model for insurance contracts that is more
uselul and consistent for insurers, covening all relevant accounting aspects.

IFRS 17 is bazed on a genaral model, supplemented by:
= A gpecific adaptation for contracts with direct participation faaturas (the variahle fae approach)

s« A simplified approach (the premium allocaticn approach) mainly for short-duration confracks

The new standard had no impact on the Group's corsolidated financial statements.
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3.22 New standards, interpretation, and amendments (continued)

Defniticn of Accounling Estimates - Amendinmenls (o A5 &

The amendments o [AS 8 clarify the distinction belween changes n accounting estimates. changes m
accounting policies and tha comection of emors. They also darify how entities use measuement technigues
amd inputs to develop accounting estimates,

The amendments had na impast on the Group’s consalidated financial statemeants,

Tha Elmendmenta t-:: s 1 Eﬂd IFF'.E F'ractu::-e- Etatarmnt 2 Hal:mg Mstanahty .ludgaarnanta provide
guidance and axamples o halp entities apply materiality judgements bo aceounting paliey discosures, The
amandments aim to help enfities provide accounting policy disclosures that ara more useiul by replacing
the requirement for entities 1o disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement o dsclose
their “‘maieral’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materality n
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statemenis.

[ntemational Tax Reformn—Pillar Two Model Rules — Amendments fo IAS 12
The amendments to AS 12 hava been introduced in responze to the OECD's BEPS Pillar Two rules and
inclhude:
A mandatory temparary exception o the recognition and disclosure of defered taxes arsing from the
jurisdictional implemaniation of the Fillar Two model rules; and
Disclosure reguirements for affected entities fo help users of the financial stalements better
understand an entity’e exposurs to Pillar Two income taxes arizing from that legislstion, parliculary
bafore its affective date

The mandalory temporary exception — the uze of which iz required to be disclosed - apples immediataly.
Tha remaining disclosure requiremeants apply for annual reporting peniods baginning on or after 1 January
2023, but mot for any Intedim periods ending on or before 31 December 2023,

The amamndments had no impact on the Group’s conzolidated financial statements.

New and amended standards and Interpretations not yet effective

The new amended, issued standards and Interpretations, which are nol effective yet have not been adopled
early by the Company and will be adopted on their effective dale as applicable, The adoption of these
standards and inlerpretations is not expected o have any maleral impact on the Group on the effective
date,

Standard, Amendment or Inferpretation Effective daie
- Amendments to S (1) Claasification of Lishilties sa Cumrent or Non-current 1 danuary 2024
- Amandments lo IFRS [16) lsasea labiltias from sale and leasaback 1 danuary 2024
- Dizclosures, Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to AS T and IFRS T 1 January 2024
- Lack of exchangeabdity - Amendments to 145 21 1 January 2025

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS

The praparation of the Group's conscidalad financal statements requires managerment io make judgements,
estimales and assumpiions that afect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and lizhifties,
and the accompamying dsclosures, and the disclosure of conlingent llabilities Uncartainty about these
assumplions and estimates could result in cutcomes thet require & material adjusiment to the camying amount
of assels or liabilfles affecied in fulure pericds.
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{CONTINUED)
Judgements

In the process of apphving the Group's accounting policles, management has made the following judgements,
which have {he mosi significant effecl on the amounts recognised in the consokdated financial stalerments:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination opitions — Group as lesses
The Group determines the lease lerm as the non-cancellable lerm of the lease, together with any perdods
covared by an option to extend the leasze if it B reasonably certain to be exercised, or any penods covered by
an option 1o terminate the lease, iF L s reasonably certain nod 1o be exercised. The Group applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certsin whether or not o exercizs the option to rensw or terminate the
leasa. Thal s, @ considers all relevant factors that creats an economic incentive lor il 1o exorcie aitfer the
ranewal or termination, After the commencement date, the Group reassasses the ease term if there is a
significant @vent or change in the circumstances tihat is within its control and affects it abiiity to exercise or
not b exercise the option 1o renaw or to tarminate the confract.

Revenue recogrition
The application of IFRS 15 has reqguired management to make the following judgements:

Gross versus net presentation

When the Group sells goods or services a5 a principal, revenue and payments to suppliers are reporied on
a gross basés in revenue and operating costs, If the Group sells goods or services as an agent, revenue and
paymenis to suppliars are recorded in revenue on a nel basis, representing the margin earmed.

Whather the Group is considered to be the principal or an agent in the ransaction depends on an analysis
by management af both the legal form and subsiance of the agresment between she Group and #s business
partners; such judgements impact the amount of reported revenue and operating expenses bud do nol impact
reporied assets, labilties or cash flows,

Transfer of cordral in confracts wilh cusiomers
In cage where the Group dedermines that perfomance obligation are aatisfied &t a point in tma, revenue =
recognized when senices o confrol over the assels that B subjedt of confrad & ransfemed 1o the cusiomens,

Estimates and assumplions

The kay assumptions cancerming the fulure and othar key sources of astimation uncariainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 1o the camying amounts of assets and
liahilities within the next financiat year, are described below. Tha Group based &8s assumptions and astimates
on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developmeants, howevear, may change due to markal changes or circumisiances
arising that are beyvond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they

OCCur,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the camying value of an assel or cash generating unif exceeds s recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less cosis of disposal and its value in use, The fair value less
cosis of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted st arm's
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental cosis of disposing of the asset, The
value in use calculation is based on & DCF model, The cash fliows are derived from the budget for the next
frve years and do nod include restruciuning actvities that the Group is not vet committed io or significant fulure
invesiments that will enhance the perfformance of the assets of the TGU being tasted, The recoverable
amount i sensitive 1o the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows
and the growth rate used for exfrapolation purpeses.,
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Provision for expected credit losses of rade receivables

The Group uses a provision mairix to calculate ECLs for rade receivables and contract assets. The provisin
rates arg based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss pattems
(le., by geograghy, product type, cusiomer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and ather forms
of credi insurance).

Usaful lives of property, plant and eguipmeant

Management determines the estimated vselul lives of 1s propery, plant and eguipment for caloulating
depreciation. Thiz estimate i determined after considenng the expected usags of the azest. Management
revienas the useful fves annually and fulure depredation charge would be adjusted whare the managemeant
balieves tha usaful lves differ from previous estimaies.

Useful lives of infangible assels

The management determmines the estimated useful lves of intangibke assets for computing amortization. This
estimale is determined afler considerng expacted usage of the assels, Management reviews the residual
value and useful ives anmuslly and future amodization charges are adjusted where management believes
the useful lives differ from previous estimates.

Proviston for inventory

Imventaries are held at the ower of cost or net realizable valee. When mveniories become slow moving or
obsolele, near to expiry or damaged, an esfimate s made for their fair value, The Group determines is
allowance for inveniony cbeclescence based upon hstorcal experienca, current condition, and current and
future expectations with respect toits uses, The estimate of the Group's afiowance far inventory absolescence
coukd change from peried o penod, which could be due o assessment of the fulure usage of inventory.

Employeas’ end-of-service benelits

The cost of the defined benefd pension plan and other post-employment benafils are delemined using
actuarial valuations. An actuanal veluation involves mmaking varicus assumptions thet may differ from actual
developments i the futire, Thesa include the determination of tha discount rate, fulure salary increases and
mirtality rates. Due o the complexities invoived in the valeation and it2 long-term nature, 5 defined benefit
abligation e highly sensitive to changes in these assumplions, All assumplions are reviawesd of each reporting
date.

Liscourd rate

The parameter mos! subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate,
managament considers the rale of return on high-qualdy fied income imvestmeants currently available and
the expected period to maturity of the emplovees' end-of-senvice benefits.

Morfaliy rate
The moriality rate is based on publicly avalable mortalily tables, Those modality tables tend to change anly

at intervals in resporse to demographic changes.

Salary rate
Estimates of fulure salary increase, takes into account iInlation, saniory, promaotion and past histony. Further
details abous emplovees” end-of-service benefits are provided in note 20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2023

4. SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUMNTIMG ESTIMATES AMND ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Leases — Estimating the incrermental borrowing rate

The Group cannct readily determine the Interest rate implicit In the lease, therelfore, it uses its incremenial
borrowing rate ("IBR"} to measure beasea liabilties. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group wouwld have
o pay o bomrow over & similar fenm, and with a similer security, the funds necessany to obtain an assetof 8
similar value to the right-cf-use assetin a similar economic environment. The |BR therefore reflects what the
Group 'would have to pay', which requires estimation when no observable rales are avallable (such as for
subsidanaathat do not enter into financing transactons ) or whan they need 1o be adjusted to reflect the terma
and conditions of the lease (for axampk, whan leases ang ned in the subsidiary's funclional currency),

The Group estimates the [BR using chservable inputs (such as markel inferes! rates) when available and s
required to make cartain entity-sp=cific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s sland-alone credit rating).

The above amendmeants are nod expecled to have a matenal impact on the Group's consobkdatad financeal
slatements.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assats and financial lisbilities recorded m the consolidated statement of
financial position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques including the dscounted cash fliow (DCF) model. The inpuls to thesa
models are taken from cbservable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in eslablishing fair values. Judgemants include consideralions of inputs such as
liquidity nsk, credt risk and market volatility,

Going concern

The Group's management has assessed the Group's ability to confinue as a going concern and i3 satisfied
that the Group has the resources o conlinue in business for the foreseaable future. Furthermong, the
management i3 not awarz of any material uncertainties that may cast signéficant doubt on the Group's
ability o continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated Mnancial stialements continues 10 ba
prepared on & going concern basis.

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group = organised info business unils based on &3 products and services
and has three reporiable segments, explosives, medicines and medical supplies and production of
ammomnium nitrate, Except for the' information related o the production of ammonium rdrste segment that is
located inthe Arab Rapublic of Egypt, all other informaton is related 1o the business segments in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia. All inter-company transaciions within the approprigtely repored segments have been
aliminatad.

Tha Management monitors the operating results of #s business units sepamataly for the purpose of making
decisions abou resource allocation and pedormance assessmenl. Segment performance is evalusted based
on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or koss in the consclidated fimancial staterments.

Medicine and  Production of

medical e lalaard Effrminations
Expiasiva suppifas mifrate Mead office Jadjustmvents  Consolidaied
SE g SR Boe SR ' SR eea SR g SR O

As al 31 Decembsr

2023

Segment a55ets 'I.wﬂ '.I.H_HI.EE 181,126 ‘l..ﬂ?'lllﬂvﬂﬁ (1,778, 198) 4 B0E, T30
Segment labidites Too 4234 2,607 113 130,124 174,771 (623, T0E) 5,007 G642
AF &l 3T Decamber

2022

Segment 1555 808 851 8,354 L5 144 128 BTN FES 7,500, T ] & AT e
Segment labiites 04 818 2 AT0SET 126, 406 118,833 {441,583 2 BB ACa
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

At 31 Decembear 2023
5.

31 Decembar 2623
AresE
External revsnues

Intersagprnent reve e

31 Decembar 2023

Canl of reveanuss
marlizabom

Dapreciation of proparty,
plard and rouipmanl
Crapregiation ol rghl-of-uss
gt

Impairment of frada
meceivabbes

Other opefalng exponses
ared alhar feama
Segmant comprehRFEng
ncome

F1 Dagarmbar 2022
Reyeues

Extermal revanues
Inkersagmsent revanug

1 Decemiar 2082

Cast of revanisag
Amortizatcen

Depreciatisn of properly,
plard and equipmenl
Dapreciation of nght-of-usa
BESAIE

Impairmart of irada
recalvabiles

Orttear cperatmg expenzes
arel oihar ncome
Seqment comprefiensia
neome

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Madicing
and Froduction of
medical ammoenium Head E\minations
Expiosive Aupplies e offfce Jafustments Consofdarsd
SR 000 ER ‘0D SR ‘060 SR 000 SR ‘000 ER 000
S03.657 4348101 - - . 554, 640
= 123 BTT a4 188 = (218 06X} a
505,657 4473068 34,1048 . (218,063 4,854,848
ETO362)  [4,038.085) (T7.558) . 204,421 {4,182,187)
- {2.213) . [3408) . iB.627)
{3.628) (22,002} {E,0348] 1,314 {36, 882)
{1.25) 13,595} . {3,&07T)
{13, 500) (80,385} i F {83, 852)
{128, 1€9) {240,893} (D054 185,091 (186,831} {3TH, 504}
BE,TT4 116,588 1,468 180,388 (200, 205) 183,815
Wedaine Prductian af
and medos) TGN Hewd ENmnations
Explashie Sioies nirate afice fagiusiments  Conspinaded
SR e SR 0 SR 08 ER 000 ZR 0 SR i
324,178 4360887 10,803 = = 3 EDS BEE
= B B1S 5,878 - (153, 6a3) -
IMATE 1447 702 TFE3 T {153,543} 35965 808
(179, bl (3.104,314) (5T a7 = 143913 (3HED
€ 2,060 - 4} - (Z104)
{1, EACIE) (24,073 {8, 536 (1,615} [E.2a2)
[1.083) 2,608 - - {3701
{15,67H) (32,618] - - [AB 287
A8, B (E21.491) (4.538) B DER AID0ETE  {308.134)
40067 [N 285 B4 A0S {110,002} A5, 147
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
At 31 Decamber 2023

B. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND CAFITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

Buildings and Machinery Furmiture, Vehicles and Capital
Irfrasiruciome Leasehold and Fixtures amd Transporraiion 2023 Wiowk inn
Lard Cosfs improvemants Equipmeant Tools Equipment Total Progress
SR ‘000 SR 000 SR ‘000 SR 000 SR 0od SR pop SR 000 SR 000
Cast
Ag Bt 1 January 2023 30,873 453 161 52470 305,411 28,272 T21683 Bl 4T TO3.B66
Agdditions 4. 385 238 340 2025 962 BE 8,356 TO205
Disgosals - (312) {2,129) (2,487 (B7E) {7.718) (14,622) -
Tranzlars 37 19,841 1,357 f39 2EE . 23,040 (23040}
Cusioms refund - - - - - - - (13, 526)
Write-off = = = = _ = = S S i 1 1 ]
As al 31 Dacember 2023 36,295 472,928 51,038 305,598 28,524 64,861 M4 TISESI
Acoumulated depreciation
Asat 1 January 2023 . 204,208 23,803 106,327 22 033 66,038 513,307
Chargs for the yaar - 10,853 HaTd 18,909 1,655 2,784 3E.882 -
Dispasals - (310) {3,128} (2,424} 1974) {7.717) (14,554} =
fsal 31 Decarmbar 2023 - 214,841 23,348 212,812 23714 G2.010 535, 7d5 -
Mel Dook, value:
As &t 31 December 2023 35,285 258,087 ZT . 630 BE THG =810 1851 43,518 735653

During 2023, the Group sokd machinery, leasehold improvement, vehicles, and eguipment with a total nel camying value of 3R 68 thousand (2022 3R 328 thousand)
against a consideration of SR 898 thousand (2022; SR 131 thousand). The net gain (loss) on these disposals were recognized as part of other income im the consolidated
comprebensive income amounting to SR 830 theusand (2022; SR (196) thousand} {note 28},

Tha finance cosls included In the gualified assels’ costs during the year onded 31 Decomber 2023 amounted to SR 2.7 million (31 December 2022: SR 12,1 millkam),

Capital work-in-progress as at 31 Decamber 2023 mainly rearesent the costs incurmed in constructing the Group's phamaceutical Plant im Hadl Industral City, and a new
Explasives Plant in Riyadh,

The pharmacautical plant in Hail and the new explosives plant in Rivadh, including the ralated buildings, machinery, motor vehacles, and all other assels have been
martgaged for the interest of Sawdi Industrial Development Fund as a secunity for related loans

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

At 31 Decamber 2023

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (CONTINUED)

Cosl
Asoal 1 Japupry 2022
Additions
Dispasals
Transfars
As sl 31 Decernber 2022

As at 1 January 2022
Charge lar the year
Disgasals

As at 31 December 2022

Met book walue:
Bz at 31 December 2022

Cosl ol Hevanue

Selling and disiribution expenses (note 25)
General and adminksirative expenses (note 26)

Buiddings and Fdrmiurs, Vekicles and
Infrasfructuns Leasshold Machinary Flwturas and Transpontefion 2022 Coapita! Wik
Land Cozfs Improvemeants and Equipment Toals Equiprmernt Taital in Progress
SR = SA0N 200 SH T ___SH 0 ___SR 000 SR 000 SRT00 SR 000
20573 45254 Ba,634 301,385 26877 02 234,410 GO 254
- - 133 34TE 2,402 1.567 T.580 a7.12a
- . [184) (33E) i [dET) (1,076)
G20 936 1,558 (1.556)
30,973 453,161 g2410 a05.411 £28.27¢ TE 183 Q42 470 703 866
- 5 S 21,2381 176,338 20,886 B 452 404 913 -
= 10,293 2,000 20,280 1,214 4,885 8,232
E ki 138) (£ i} (411} IGET,
- 204 FhE 23,803 186 327 22 K3 B85, H36 £43,3a97
30,8973 248 863 28,667 108,084 6,230 5247 420,073 703 BEG
The below table shows he distibulion of depraciation expense according WO operating cosl items for the year ending Decamber 31
2023 2022
SR ‘000 SR 0
Z8.830 28,047
5,355 110
2,687 3075
36,832 38,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

At 31 Decembear 2023

T. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL
New Ciher
Brand Key CovmpLiter Intamgibie
Money Software Gooatwill assols® Total
2023 SR SR'B00 SR SR'G00
Cosf
Ae al 1 January 2023 12,500 22 455 A63 BOT 138,820 B3 582
AddiEans i 1,175 - - 1175
As at 31 Dacember 2023 12,500 73,630 469 807 138,820 Bdd 757
Amaorfizalion and mmpsirmeant
Az al 1 January 2023 2,500 12,864 - - 29,384
Arrodization 1,500 288 2 3239 5 B2T
A at 31 December 2023 19,000 20,752 3,238 34,999
Mel Book Value
As at M December 2023 1,500 2,878 463 80T 135,581 E0B 766
Cihor
Noew Brand Campitar ) intsngible
Hey Worey Software Gaoowil t5* Tatal
2022 SREO00 SR SE000 SR000
Cast
A al 1 January 2022 12.500 21,026 445,807 - 6033353
Al = 1,48 - 138,820 140,249
AaE gt 31 Decamber 2022 12,500 22 455 460,807 138,530 B3 552
Amorization and
irmpairmiant
A al 1 January 20232 8000 10 260 - = 27,280
Amodizaiion 1.500 Gl - - 2,104
Ae at 31 December 2022 _8.500 10,84 - 20,384
el Book Value
A at 31 December 2028 3000 2,591 A&D 80T 138 820 614,218

* Additions te cther intangible asseta in the year ended 31 December 2022 regrezent the acguisition of nighta of
manufacturing, marketing. and digribotion of one medicine products in Saudi Arabia. The subzidiary - AdA
Pharmeceutical Indusiries Company (AJA Phama)will b= the manufacturer and supplier in K58 markst. In June
2023, AJA Pharma obtsined necessery aspprovals from fhe competent suthonties and commenced
manufacturing and supplving the product.

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of SITCO Pharma in 2001, Fer impairment testing, goodwill acquired through
business combnations is sllocated fo the business CGUs, As at 31 December 2023, the goodwill amauntad to
ER 46098 milbon (2022; SR 46%.8 million), The Weighted Average Cost of Capital ("WACC”| rate applied s
12.37%: (31 December 2022 10.40%). The WACC is calculaled based on assumptions thal reflect market
assessments of the risk specific te CGLUL Segment specific rsk is incorporated by applying average beta faciors.
The beta factors are svaluated annually based on publicly avafable market data of the industry. The average
affactive zakat rate e assumed to be 2.5% (2022 2.5%). Tha cash flow projections are darved from the
respacive basiness plan covering a panod of e years, Cash flow projections bavond the fiva-year business
plan are axtrapolaled taking inta account an assumed growth rate of 200 (2022 2.08%).

Based on the analysis, an increase of 100 basis points in the discount rate would resultin a decrease in the ViU
by 17%, while a decrease in 100 basis points in the discount rate would result in an increase of 27%, An increase
in the terminal growth rate by 100 basis points would result in an increase of 8% in the value in use, while a
decrease of 100 basis pomts i the rate would result in a decrease in the ViU by T%. With respect fo the
assessment af the value inuse, management believes that reasonably possible change in its used assumpiions
wiould nol cause the camying value of its goodwill io exceed its recoverable amount. No imparment loss was
recognzed for 2023 and 2022, reapaclively.
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5.3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL (COMTINUED)
2023 2022
S SR 00
Cost of Revanue 3asr :
Saling and distribulion expenses (nale 25) 1.500 1.500
Genera! and administrative expanses (note 26) aa0 E04
5827 2104
B. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Parcels Warshouses
of Land and offices Toral
SR000 SR'000 SR'000
Cosf
Asat 1 January 2023 16,776 10,492 29,268
Additions - - .
Az at 31 Dacamber 2023 18,776 10,492 29,268
Accumulated Depreciafion
As at 1 January 2023 4 518 5012 9,931
Depraciation expeanse 1,791 2,096 3,887
As gt 31 December 2023 6,710 7,108 13,818
Az at 31 December 2023 12,066 3,384 15,450
Parcals Warshouses
of Land and officas ot
ERTO00 SR000 SR'000
Cost
Ag at 1 January 2022 10,168 g.57a 18,747
Additions 8,608 _1913 10,521
Ag at 31 December 2022 18,776 10,492 29 268
Accumwated Depreciation
As at 1 January 2022 3,534 2 6095 6,230
Depreciation expense 1,385 2,316 3,701
Az at 31 December 2022 4,018 5012 9,931
fef Book Value N R
Az at 31 December 2022 13 BET 5 480 19,337

d

The below table shows the disiribution of amortization expense according 1o operaling cost items for the

vear ending December 31:

Cost of Revemnue

Selling and distribution expenses (nale 25)
General and administrative expenses (nole 26)

2023 2022
5R 000 SR 000
1,582 1,500
118 14
2,187 2,187
3. E87T 3,701
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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o INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

Care Supply Chaen for Logstic Services Company Ltd. (the “Joint Venture® and "CSC") 5 8 joint venture
i which the Groug owns a comman conliol and partnars’ resoiutions ame adopled unanimously as per e
Company's Articles of Association, with an ownership Interest of 50%, The Joint Venture has been
incorporated as per Sawdi Regulations and registered in Riyadh under commercial registration numbser
1010846387 an 17 Jumada Al-Ula 1444H (11 December 2022} with a share cagital at an amount of SR
500 divided into 500 shares with SR 1000 each. The objective of the Company is to provide transportation
services, loading, unleading, warehousing and disiribution, The Group's share in the joint venture |s
accountad for under agquity mathod.

Summarized financial informmation of the joint venturs, besed on its IFRS financial statements, and
reconcliation with the carrying amount of the investment in the conselidated financial statements are sel
out bedkwe

Movameani of investment in the joint veature:

2023 2022
SR ‘000 SR ‘000
Az at 1 January 250 -
Initial investment - 250
Share of profit 3,872 :
As at 31 December 4,122 2ol
Summarized financial position of CSC;
2023 2022
SR 000 SR 000
Currant assels 43,325 SO0
Current liabiities [35,081) =
Equity 8,244 500
Group's share in equity = 50% 4,122 20
Group's carrying amount of the investment 4,122 250
Summarzed statement of profit or less of CSC;
2023
SR '000
Revanue 33770
Expenses (25,041)
Frofit before tax 8,728
Income lax expense (286G}
Profit for the year T, 743
Group's share of profit for the year 3,872

The joint venture had no other contingent labilites or commirments as at 31 Decembar 2023,

10. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Dertvalive financal instruments designated at fair value through profit and kess which represent a porifolo of
profit rate swaps, The maturity dates range from 2025 to 2027 with three-month variable interest rate and
SAIBOR. Derivatives do nol meet the criterla for hedge accountng. The nomenal value of the contracts as at
341 Decamber 2023 amounied to SR B00 milion (31 December 2022! SR B00 millicn}, and the far value of
the derivatives amounied to SR 1.8 milion (31 December 2022:4 2 milicn). The change in the far value of
derivatves rapresants a loss of SR 2.4 million for the yaar ending 31 Decamber 2023 (31 December 2022
gain of SR 4.2 milion),
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11. INVENTORIES

Finished goods (Pharmaceuticals)
Raw materials {ammonium nitrate and other chemicals)
Finished goods (explosives)

Spare parls

Packaging material

Less; provision for inventory

hMovaemeant in provision for inventory is as follows;

Asoat 1 January
Provided during the year

Write offe

Ag at 31 Decembar

12, TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade recaivables
Less: Impairment on trade receivahles

2023 2022
SR ‘000 5R ‘000
1,026,706 1,065,952
57,597 31,027
48,686 32,095
5,400 4,200
160 __AIn
1,138,548 1,140,446
(37,572) (32,454)
1,100,877 1,107,992
2023 2022
SR 0w SR000
32,454 44,934
28,120 27,040
(23,002 {30,520}
37 572 32 454
2023 2022
SR ‘000 SR 000
1,921,068 1,722,120
(162 976) (208 639)
1,758,000 1,613 481

Trade recelvables fram Saudi gevernmend institulions represanted: 62% of the 1otal rade recelvabbes as
on A1 December 2023 (31 December 2022 60% of the total trade recesvable). Thase insiiubors hawe a

sirong credit rating in the Saudl market.

The Group recognized an alowance for expected crad loszes for trace recaivables for the year ended

A1 Decamber 2023 n the amount of SR 63.9 miflion {31 December 2022: 5K 48,3 million),

Set oul below i the movement in the aliowance for expected credit losses of rade receivables;

As a3l 1 January
Frovided during the year

Wirite offs

As al 31 Decembsar

2023 2022
5R ‘000 SR 000
208,639 160,845
63,856 48,297
{103,513) (203)
162,976 208,639
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13. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

2023 2022
SR 000 SR 000
Advances to suppliers 98,037 118,008
Deferred registration and licensing fees 7,881 7643
Tax authority receivable — Egypt 6,078 13,283
Prepakd expenses 4,660 5,448
Value added lax recalvable 2,108 2737
Advances 1o emplovees 1,264 1137
Insurance with others B 313
Other 2,440 1,305
123,264 149,864
14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2023 2022
_ SR'000 SR ‘000
Shert term deposit 70,000 25,000
Cash at barks 62,199 65,371
Cash on hand 910 244
134,109 241,215

The short-term deposits, with a maturity period from 15 to 20 days, carery lxed rate of return babwean 5.55%
to 6.00% (2022: 4.00% to 4.40%) per annum,

15. SHARE CAPITAL

On 3 Thul-Hijjah 1444 (Corresponding fo 21 June 2023), the Extraordinary General Assembly approved
the recommendation of the Board of Deectors to split the nominal vakee of the share from SR 10 per share
o SR 1 per share, As a result, the number of shares increased from 84,320,000 shares to 843,200,000
shares, The legal formalities to reflect the aforementoned were completed during the year,

Az at 31 December 2023, the share capital of the Company consists of 843,200,000 shares with nominal
value of SR 1 per share aggregating to SR 843 200,000 (31 Decamber 2022: 84 320,000 sharas with
naminal value of 53R 10 per share aggregating fo SR 843 200,000},

16. STATUTORY RESERVE

As perthe Company's By-aws, the Company must set eside 105 of net income for the yvear to the statutary
reserve til it equals 3% of the share capital, As the resarve has reached the minimum amount, the Group
has resolved to discontinue such fransfers. This statulory reserve s not available for distribution o the
Group's shareholders

17. GENERAL RESERVE

The general reserve is appropriated according to the Board of Direciors' recommendation and the
Shareholders’ approval in the General Assembly measting.

ar
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13, LOANS AND BORROWINGS

18.1 Saudi Industrial Development Fund’s Financing

The loeng-term kbans ware ablained by two subsidianas of the Group lrom Saudi Tndustnal Devalogpoendt Fumd
{"SIDF") to meet the Group's capital expenditure, The first loan was oblained by AJA Pharmaceutcas
Industries Limited {"AdA Pharma™) during 2078 and amounted to SR 157.5 milkon, of which the full armount
of the facility has been ulilized as a1 31 Decamber 2023 (31 December 2022: SR 157.5 million}. The secomxd
loan was obtained by Saudi Chemical Company Limited ("5CCL") during 2020 and amounted to 5R 228
milldan, of which the full amount of the facilily has béen utifized as al 31 December 2023 (31 December 2023
SR 220 million).

Tha loan to AdA Pharma is repayable in eidtean sami-annual instaliments atarting fram 15 Shawswal 1444 H
[cormespondng o 5 May 2023), while the loan 1o SCCL s repavable in fourteen sami-annual instaliments
starling from 15 Rabi Al-Thani 1444 H [corresponding to 9 November 2022).

The loans from SIDF carmed fixed commission charges of SR 26.4 millian, which have bean paid upfront by
the Group at the beginning of the loan term. The commission charges are being amortized over the terms of
the loans. As at 31 Decamber 2023, the unamortized balance amounted o SR 13 million (31 Decambar
2022 SR 16.6 million).

The amordization of such qualified charges along with other finance costs of the loan are capitalized as part
of the carrying value of the properdy, plant and equipment [during the construction period).

Tha agreemenis ara securad promissory nodes, and pledge of the subsidiaries” propary, plant and
equipment. The subsidiaries are required to comply with certain covenanis uncer the loan facilities cbtaned

The fallowing represents a summany of information about the Saudi Industrial Development Fund's:

2023 2022
SR ‘000 SR ‘000
Loans from Saudi Industmal Development Fund 245,500 378, 500
Less; Unamortized processing fees {13,008) {16,619}
Praasent value adjusirment (2,3TT) {3,018}
34,115 358 BES
Current 33,004 24,751
Mon-curment 304,029 334,114
334,115 358 BB5
Movemanis in unamortized fransaction costs are as follows:
2023 s022
SR 4000 SR 000
Aa at 1 January 16,619 20409
Amortized during the year (3,811) (3,790)
Az at 31 Dacember 13,008 16,619

18.2 Short-Term Islamic Loans

The Group ik using Islamic financing to finance 15 business operations. These facililies bear finance cost al
SAIBOR pluz prevailing market rates. The faciities are eecured by promizzony notes. The facilities agreament
Inchudes coverants requinng the maintenance of certain levals of financial rafios.
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18. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

18.3 Long-Termn Islamic Loeans

In Jures 2022, the Group acquired a long-term Islamic loan from & local bank i the amount of SR 300 millkon
1o finance the construction of Be subsidian’s Bclony. The loan is subjed o the prevailing interast rales
between the Saudi banks (SIBOR) plus a proft margin, The loan Is repayable in & years in quartery
instafiments afler a grace peniod bwo years.

Alzo, during June 2022, the Group acguired a kong-termn lzlamic loan from a local bank in the amount of SR
140 millian to finance i3 acquisilon of a pharmaceutical produst, The loan is subject fo the prevailing interest
rates batwean the Sawdi banks (SAIBOR) plus a profil margin. The boan is repaysble in equsl 8 sami-annual
Instafments with the last installment pavable in September 2027 after a grace panod of one vear, The cirrent
and non-current portion of the long-term lzlamic loans are SA %08 milion and 3404 million (20222 35 million
andd 405 million), respactively. The facility agreement includes covenants reqguiring the mairienances of certain
levals of financial ratios

19. LEASE LIABILITIES

2023 2022
SR 000 SR 000
Az at 1 January 18,213 10,622
Additions - 10,330
Accretion of interast 630 eyl
Payments {3,158) (3,055)
Az at 31 Decembear 16,687 18,213
Current 4 528 4,459
Mon-current 11,159 13,7654
15,687 18213
The maturity analysis of lease liabilibes is disclosed in Mote 31,
The fallowing ana the amounts recagnised in prafif or loss:
2023 2022
SR ‘000 51 000
Expense ralating to short-term leases 2,087 915
Depreciation sxpenss of rghl-of-use assels (nole B) 4,587 S0
Interest expense on lease labilities 630 418
6,614 7,532
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20. EMPLOYEES DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITIES

201 Changes in the Present Value of Employess’ Defined Boenefits Liabilities

hovamants of and of service banalil provision Tor the year ended 31 Decambaes is as folow.

As at 1 January

Service cosl

Interest cost

Re-measurement loss | (gain) of delined banafil liabiiy

Benefits paid
As al 31 December

20.2 Employees’ Beneflit Expense

Tha amaunts recognized n tha consolidaled statement of profit or loss are as folows:

Service cost
Interest cost

20,3 Principal Actuarial Assumptions

Discount rate
Salary increase rate

20.4 Maturity Profile of Employees’ Defined Obligation

2023 2022
SR ‘000 SR 00
56,532 59,403
7,145 8, 662
2,236 1,279
37 4,210
{5,371) {8,602)
60,8569 56,532
2023 2022
SR ‘000 SR 00
T.145 o, G662
2,23 1.279
9,381 0,941
2023 2022
4.45%-4.70% 4.10% - 4.25%
3.00%-6.50% 3.00% - 5.7%

The following table shows the maturity profile of the Group's defined benefit obligations as at 31 December;

One vear ar lass
Above one year bul less than five years
Above five years

2023 2022
SR ‘000 SR 0o

14,156 12,885

19,210 40,669

47 481 44,244

80,847 97,799
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20. EMPLOYEES DEFINED BEMEFIT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
20.5 Employees’ Defined Benefit Obligation Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity of the benefits to changes in the weighted principal assumptions are:

impact on employes bermefit
3 Decembor 2023 Change fn assumpiion Dbligations

Change in assumplion  Base value assumplion assumplion

SH ‘D00 SR ‘000 SR
Discount rate 100 basis points 0,859 [3,019) 3,178
Salary growth rate 100 basis points 60,859 3,478 {3,344)
Irmpact on employes Denef
3 December 2022 Change i assumpbion . Obligafions
ncraase N Dacreasa in
Change s assummphon Baze vake agsurmadion aEEwmpion
SROG ____SRO00 _ SRO00
Discount rate 100 b=cls points &6.532 (3.054) A.426
Salary growth rabe 100 Biakls poants 56,632 4711 (3.385)

The sensitivily analysis above has been delermined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
the employees' terminal benefits liabilities as & result of reasonable changes in key assumpiions ooourming
as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022. The sansitivity analysis i based on a change in a
gsignificant assumplion, keeping all other sssumptions constant. The sensithvity analysis may not be
reprasentalive of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it Is unlkely that changes n
assumptions would ocour in isolation of one another.

The average duration of the deflined bemell pan obiigation a3 at 31 December 2023 s 3.61 = 6.64 years
{31 December 2022; 4 .38 — 7.09 years),

The Sroup’s plan is exposed to actuarial nisks such as discount rate risk and salary change nsk

Digcount  Rata The decrease in dizscount rate will incraaae liabilities of terminal banafit plan

Risk

Salary changes The current value of the provigion for tarminal benefit plan is calculated baged

figk on the paricipants’ fulure salaries in the plan, Therafore, the ncrease in the
patticipants’ =alares in the plan will lead to an increass in the lisbilgies of the
plan

. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent shareholders, Directors and key management personnel of the Group, and
entibes controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties, As al yearend, all related
party transactions between subsidiares were eliminated.

21.1 Compensation and benefits of key executives
Tha fallawing raprezant the compensation of the executives for tha year ended Decamber 31;

2023 L0223
SR ‘000 S8 o0
Expenses and remunerstion of the Board of Directors (MNate 26) 6,651 J.018
Short-term benefits and remunearation 17477 14,435
Post-amployment benefits 764 38D
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21. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
21.2 BALANCES OF RELATED PARTIES

The folleasing is aslatement of tha balances al the and of the year rasulling from ransacions with a related

party;
Trarsacian
LA e

Tha Asduce of the 2023 2022

ame af reialed pany Helanonship  ransachon 5H 000 55 D0

Balance &5 af

2023 2022
SR M0 SR 000

Amoeanin okie feom ralatad parmias:

CArg Supply Ghato for Logishs Serdces  Asnr wmniue Faprnents and - 1668 3 668
Company Lid. saparses on befall
Amouimis owe fo related paniies:
g:ﬂ.’i‘un?p‘:'puﬂhm far Logisie Servcas  Jonbvenfure  Services 16,205 r 12,537
Haireann Wordwide Logishcs Pariner in @
el veniuna AT Saaoes To7EE 13313 13.3TF
22, ACCRUED EXPEMSES AND OTHER CURREMNT LIABILITIES
2023 2022
SR '000 SR 000

Acciued expenses 50,378 24,680
Acorued employes benefiis 48,721 40,302
Provizion for sales returns 20,TTG 14,293
Provision for lawsuils 18,706 14,506
Advances for cusiomers 15,178 8825
Frovision for sale discount g.830 9838
Penalties 5,508 .
Accrued Board of Director remunerations EET2 4 244
Other liabilities 11,662 13,664

186,411 131,338
23, ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX
23.1 Movement in provision for zakat and income tax during the year

2023 2022
SR000 SR000

As at 1 January 57,187 46,229
Charged during the year 33,668 33,180
Faid during the year (40,177} (22,212)
Az at 31 December &0,6BB 57197
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23.  ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

21.2 Fakat Status

Zakat and income tax provisions of 3R 33.7 million were recognized by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: SR 33.2 million). The Comparny, SITCO Pharma, CCCIL, AJA
Pharma and SCCL have filed their 2akat declarations and oblained zakal certificates for the vears up o
2015,

The Growp chiained the approval from Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority ("ZATCA™) to submit consolidated
Zzakatl returrs for the holding company and the following subsidiares: SCCL, AJa Pharma, and CCCIL
starting from the year 2020, In addition, SITCO Pharma submils a separate zakat retum. The Group has
submitted its consolidated zakat relurns for the years 2020 1o 2032,

As at 31 December 2023, the Group obtained the final zakat assessments from the ZATCA up o the year
20020, which resulled in an additional amount of SR 25 milfion. However, the Group has accepted ZATCA's
satflement of SR 14.6 milkon for the vears 2015 to 2020

SITCO Pharma has filed itz zekat declarations and obtained zakat certificates for the years up to 2022,
The Company ablained the final zakat assessments for years up 1o 2017 from ZATCA, No differences wea
produced from the final zakat sssezament Mo aeeessmeant has bean raiged by ZATCA, for the period from
2018 to 20322,

233 Income Tax

The income tax expense payable by a foreign subsidiary, in accordance with the prevalling tax regulations
in its country, for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to SR 1.6 milion (31 December 2022; SR
204 3 thousand), Income tax paymend has been deferred for the perod wntll the final tax retuns are
submitbod.

249, REVENUE

2023 2022
SR ‘oo SR 00
Sale of goods 4,823 964 3,665,967
Randearing of sarvices 30,684 28,901
4,854 B4B 3,695 868
2023 2022
SR ‘000 SR 000
Gavernmarnt 2,376,652 1,525,861
Mon-government 2,473,296 2,170,007
4,854 848 3695 865

Revenue is recognizad in the consalidated siatemen! of profil or loss at a poind in trme when the sefvice o
product is deemed to have been delivered to the customer. Refer o Note 5 for the segment distribution of
FEVEnuUE,
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25, SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPEMNSES

Employes Costs

Freight and transportation

Store management expenses (Mole 21.2)
Insurance

Depreciation of properly, plant, and equipment (noke &)
Commission and incaniive

Litilites

Advertizing and promoticnal activities
Rent

Registration and subscriplion Faes

Travel and accommodation

Amortization of intangible assels (note ¥)
Exhibitions and conferences

Depreciation of right of use assels [nole B)
Samples

Repair ard malntenance

Office supphas and stationery

COthers

28. GEMERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employes cost

Professional and legal fees

Registration and subscription fees

IS ance

Board of Dhrectors” remunerations (nobe 21 ]
Litilles

Cepreciation of proparty, plant, and eguipment (nofe )
Cepredation of right of use assels (nota &)
Trips and accommodabon

Repairs and maintenance

Statonery and office supples

Amortization of intangible assets (note 7)
Others

2023 2022

SR ‘000 SR 000
£8,551 85,647
31,903 25,636
10,786 13,313
6,334 6,443
5,355 7. 110
4,463 2198
3,960 3,844
2,877 2487
2,005 3,515
1,890 1,803
1,634 1,589
1,500 1,500
1,464 1,084
118 14
112 478
57 452
48 35
4,382 2,365
167,439 159,483

2023 2022

SR o000 SR 000
68,555 63,578
13,412 7,430
6,355 5,842
6,188 1,576
9,651 3,018
3,346 4,242
2,697 3,075
2,187 2,187
1,780 1,306
1,163 740
1,046 453
890 B
B,754 8,443
124,024 102,465
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271. FINAMCE COSTS

2023 2022
SR 000 SH O
Short-term Islamic loans (Noke 18.2) 60,638 50,182
Long term financing (Mote 18.3) 21,854 13,183
SIDF financing (Mote 18.1) 11,885 4447
Employees’ defined benefit kabilities {Mote 20) 2,236 1,279
Financng cosis on denvatives (Mote 10) . 1,128
Lease fabilities (Note 19) 630 316
97,243 70,545
Les=s; Finance costs induded in the costs of gualifying assels {2,682) (12,113)
94,561 58432
28, OTHER (EXPENSES) INCOME, NET
2023 2022
SR ‘000 SR '00g
Linutilized accruals - 1,703
Gain / (loss) on disposal of propedy, plant and equipment (Mole 6} 830 (196)
Others 12,224) 1,533
{1,394) 3,040

29. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Eamings per share ("EPEZ") is computed using nei profid for the year atinbutable to ordinary equity holders
of I Group based on the waighted average number of shares oulstanding during he vear of 843, 200,000
shares.

The number of shares for the vear endad 31 December 2022 has been adjusted retrospectively 1o reflec
the shares split (Mole 15). Since the change i number of shares outstanding during the year endad 231
Decamber 2023 was due to shares split without & corresponding change in resources, number of shares
outstanding for al periods presenied was adjusted refrospedively.

The diluted samings per shera ar the same as the basic earnings per share as the Group doas not hava
any dikuted insfruments in issue.

The fofowing table reflects the income for the year atinbutable fo equity halders of the parent and shane
data usad in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

2023 2022
5R ‘000 SR 000
Income fior the yaar attributable to equity holders of the parent 182, 8BE B, 223
2023 2022
Weighted average number of ordinary shares J43 200,000 84,3, 200, 000
Basic and diluted earnings per share aitributable 1o equity
hoiders of tha parant (SR 0.22 Q.10
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an. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Aszals and Liabilies are measured at fair value in the consoidated statement of linancial position in threa
levels of fair valuse hierarchy. This group is determined besed on the kKnaeest level of the significant inputs
used in Tair value rreasursment as per the following.

Level 1; Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asseis or liabilities.

Level 21 Inputs other than quotad prices in level (1) which are observabia for assels and liabilities, directly
(such a3 pricas} or indirectly (such as derived prices),

Level 3; Inputs for assets or iabilkies, not based on cbservable market data (uncbsenable inputs],

Al of the Gioup's assels and labilities are recorded at amortized cost excepl for derivative financial
instruments. Therafore, the fair value hierarchy has not been disdosed which requires the three levels of
fair valus.

The carrying amount Wa. ihe fair value

Eidaniliag 31 December 2023 31 Dacembar 2022
SR'000 SR'000
m&aﬁ:zdr;; d Carrying Fair value Carrying  Fair value
amount armount
AR i Level 2 1,780 1,780 4198 4198

instrurments

Dervative financial instruments are recoded at fair value using valuation technigues which use market's
observable inputs.

Th Group considers that the carrying amount of trade recalvables, other current assats, cash and cash
equivalents, Saudi Industrial Development Fund's financing, long term Islamic lnans, kease liabilities, shart
term lslamic loans, trade payables, dividends payable, accrued expanses and olher liabilities approximate
their fair values.

. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial kabilities compnse leans and borrowings, and trade and other pavables,
The main purpose of these nancial labiities iz o Mnance the Group's operations. The Group’s principal
financial assets include trade receivabies, and cash and shon-lerm deposils that derive directly from s
aparations.

The Group is exposed to markel rsk, credit nsk and liquidity nsk, The Group's senior management
ovarsesa the management of these risks. The Group's risk menagement policies are established to
identify and measure the risks faced by the Group, to sei appropaate nshk limits and contrels and o monitor
riaks and adherence to limita. The Group does not engage into hedging activities.

Thae Board of Directors reviews and agress policies for managing each of these rigks, which are
summarized balow:

A Market risk

Market risk |s the risk that the fair valee or fulure cash fiows of a inancial instrument will ecluate becausa
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises thres types of nsk; interest rate risk, currency risk and
other price rsk, such as aquity price risk and commodity rigk. Financial instruments affected by market
risk include loans and bomrowings.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
ICONTINUED)
3.2 Interest risk

Interesl rate rigk s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financkal instrument will ucieats
because of changes in markel inlerest mtes. The Group's exposure Lo the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarly to the Group's leng-term debt obligations with floating interest rates, The
CGroup manages s exposure fo commission rate risk by continuously monitoring movements in interest
rates.

Interasf rafe sansiity
The fallowing table demonstrates the semsitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that podion
of koans and bormowings and denvative fimancial instruments affecied, after the impact of hedge sccounting, i
any, With alf ather variables held constans, the Group's profit before zakat and tax is affected twrowgh fthe impact
on floaling rale borrowings, as foliows:
Impact on profit before rakat
31 December 2023 and income fax
increase in 3R Decroase
Change in rate ‘000 SR 000
Variabla rate financial insirumanis 100 basis points B,7&T (B.TET)

Impac! on profit bafore zakat
31 December 2022 and income tax
Change i rate Increase in Decrease
SR ‘000 SR
Variabls rate financial msirumenis 100 bhasis points {11,309 11.309

3.3  Foreign currency risk

Fareign curtengy nsk is the rsk thal the fair vaiue or fulure cash flows of an exposure will Tuctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates, Saud| Riyal is consderad as the {unctional currancy of the Group which is
pegged against the Lnited States Dallar. Therefore, the Group is only exposed o axchange rate fluctuations
Trom transactions denominated in foreign currencies other than Unied States Dollar,

The Group has an overseas subsidiany in Egypt whose funclional and presentation currency is United States
Dollar however has certain receivables in Egyptian pound,

The foliowing table detalls the saensithvity %o 2 5% increase and decrease in the Saudi Riyal towards its exposure
of Egyptian Pound for its Egypt Operation against the Saudi Riyals which may have the following impact o the
Group financial performance and there is no direct impect on the Company™s equity cther than the impact
resulting from the effect on profit for tha year.

Impact on profit before rakat
and income fax
Charnge in EGP ER ‘000 ER000
2023 5% 285 {258)
022 504, 310 (342}
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3. FIMANCIAL [INSTREUMENTSE RISK MANAGEMENMT OBJECTIVEE AMD POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

M4 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligatlons under & finendcal Instrument or
customer confract, leading 1o a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk on As cash and cash
equivalents and trade receivablas.

2023 2022
SR ‘000 SR 000
Trade receivables 1,758,090 1,513 481
Cue from refated party . 3,665
Cash et barks 133,199 anav
1,891,289 1,607,520
Trade receivables

Recalvabldes credil risk s subject tothe Group's estatlished policy, procedures and control relating 1o receivables
credit risk manegement, Recelvables of the Group comgrise primarly of Minsiry of Health, other ministries, other
government medical inslifufions, and certaln high profile Saudl Arablan companies. The Group's maragement
foltlows-up outstanding balances, and where appiopriale, trade recelvables are carmed net of an allowence for
credit loss. The management has established & credt policy under which sach new customer s analyzed
individualty for creditwarthiness belore the Groug's standard payment terms and condions are oflered. The
credit terms are extended to cusiomers where ihe Group does not expect any Inabllity to pay.

The ministries and other government medical institubions are parl of the Government of the Kingdom of Saud
Arabia, which has a strong cradit rabng in the Saudi market, The high profile Saudi Arahian comparies also have
a high credit rating in the Saud markel. The maximum exposure toocredil rsk assoctated with the Group's
financial instruments s imited to the book values included in the consolidated statement of fnandal position of
thosa respective financial instruments

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses, The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of vanous cusiomer segments with similar
foss paiterns, The calculastion reflects the probabdity-weighted outcome and reasonsble and suppodiable
information thal is available at the reportng date aboul past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditiona. The Group considers a financial assat in defeult al vanous past due days depending on
the classification of financial sesets and their confractusl payments terms.

Sel out below is the information aboul the credit risk exposure on the Group's rade recaivables using a
provision matrs:

31 December 2023 Pasi due
< § #1180 181- 360 = 360
Total Not past dira days days  days dlays
Govermanent recelvables SR ‘000 SR '0ar ER ‘B0 R 000 5R \00a 5R 'O
Expecied orodd foss rals 0.04% 0,35% 1.38% 212% 4. 78%
Goss Irade recsivabies 1,900,148 BRI 040 324TE 30,367 o 334,163
Expacied crodi kss Bxadt 284 313 A2h LA B, 281
A1 December 2023 Pasi e
< &g 8 - T80 181 - 360 1
Foal Mo past dinge s tlays days olaprs
Privabe sector receivabiles SR 00 SR 000 SR 000 BR 060 &R 000 SR ‘000
Expodiod crodd lass rala 0,68% 2.18% 2.23% 2.93% 71.38%
Gmss rade recaivables 820,921 618,371 76863 13,877 5597 103,243
Expechad cradit loss BO1ES 4,255 1675 0 252 TLET3
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

31.4 Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)
1 Decamber 2027 Fast dum
5 9 81— 180 181 — 360 = 160
Totad ot past due days oays days days
Favernmant recaivanks BR 00T FR T SR 000 SR DO FR T BRSO
Enpedied cred nss rale D0E% 1.56% 1.83% 1.30% 14 455
fimes rade receivabies 1,065,586 B S6d i5,084 A8 532 124,453 23T 503
Evpected cradt foss 41,727 T 753 401 1,618 30, 056
31 Decembsr 2022 Past dig
= 3 - 100 TH1 = 360 = I
Tala! Mol pasf dus dEyE vays days ey
Private secior recanablas SR 0D 5F Tae SR 000 IR Don SRS SR 000
Expadiad cradi ke rata D07 0,825, 2.87% 18, 15% GH BT
Their ey irsg vl of o B58,534 BEAE2A 33477 8,734 f,412 240,227
e fva bl e
Expactad cradt ies 164,912 ITH T 135 1,164 164,670
Cash at hanks

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial insttutions & managed by the Group's freasury
department in accordance with the Group's policy, The Group seeks o manage its credit nsk with respect
to banks by only dealing with reputable banks. At the reporting date, no significant concentralion of credit
risk was idenfified by the management,

31.5 Liguidity nsk

Liguidity risk is tha rsk that the Group will pol be able o meet s financial cbigations as they fall due. The
Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient iquidiy
to meat its labilites when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, withaut incurring unacceplable
losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation,

The Group’s ohjective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through he use
Of bank cverdralls, bank loans, and lease conracts. The Group assessed the conceniration of risk with
respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access to a sufficient variety of
sources of furding and debt maturing within 12 menths can be rolled over with sxisling lenders.
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3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
31,5 Liguidity nsk (Continued)
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's finendal lkabilties based on coniractual

undiscounted payments. Balances dus within twelve monihs equal their carrying balances, as the impacl
of discounting s not significant,

Ore to Mora
Cn Within five than five

clermand ane year YBars years Total
fAs af 3T December 2023 SR 000 SR i SR 000 SR ‘000 SR 000
Laass= labilities - 3,934 7913 5,138 17,045
SIDF financing 20,000 219,000 130, 500 aTa 0D
Short-term k=laméc knans - 436,676 - . A36,67R
Larg-term lslamic loans . 8,604 340,392 . 440,000
Trace payables 1,808,245 - . . 1,508,248
Accruad axpenses and other liabilibes 186,411 - - - 186,411
Dividends payable 13,308 a2, 116 - . 55,424

1,704,384 611,334 S67,305 135,698 3,018,201
Iors
on Withim One fo than five

oemand orne year five pears VEETS Tofal
Az at 31 Decamber 2022

SR 000 SR 000 SR 000 SR 0 5R 000
Lease liabililies . 4. 51 A,713 7127 20421
EIDF financing . 20,000 210,000 130,500 378,500
Short-term kzlamés nans . GRD 061 . . D, D61
Lang-laam Islamic lnans . a5 {0 360 TOH a5 204 440 00
Trade payables 1,140,477 - - - 1,148,417
Accruad axpenses and ather llabilitas 131339 - - - 131,330
Diviclends payabe 13,308 47 158 . - 55,466

1,293,064 G0, 700 ST 418 1722 &G 10

az. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Far the purpose of the Group's capital managemen!, capital Ircludes issued capital and all other equity
reserves atirnbutable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
ansure thal [t maintains a healthy capital ratio in order Io support s business and maximize shareholder
value.

The Group manzges ite capital strocture and makes adjusiments o it in light of changes in economic
canditions

Mo changes were made in the objectives, polickes or processes for managing capital during the years
anded 31 December 20043 and 31 Decembar 2022,

a3 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

33.1 Contingent liabilities

The Group has confingent [kabilities from fime to time relating to cerain disputed matters, including claims
from and against contractors, litigation and arbitration proceedings involving a variely of cases, Thesa
contingent Eabilities arose in the nomal course of business. Mo additional significant obligations are
axpecied to be incuwred from thesa potantal claims.
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33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

33.2 Commercial and capital commitments
As al 31 Decembar 2023, the Group had oulstanding lelters of guaranies amounting W 53R 4359 milllion
(31 December 2022 3R 377.6 milion), izsued in the normal course of business of the Group.

Asoat 31 December 2023, the Group has outstanding letlers of credit amaunting o 3R 286.6 millien (31
Cecamber 2022: SR 37.7 million}, and capital commitments cutstanding as at 31 Decamber 2023 in
respedt of capital work in progress projects of 3R 16,8 milllon (31 December 2022 SR 117.8 milllon},

34, DIVIDENDS

The Company's Ordinary General Azsembly In s mestng held on 3 Thul-Hijah 1444H (corresponding 1o
21 Juma 2023), authonized the Board of Diractors fo disfribute interim profits on a quartery or semi-annusl
baziz for the fiscal year 2023, It was also approved to pay the Board of Directors’ remuneration for the
fiscal year ending in 31 December 20022 in the amount of SR 2,250,000

The Board of Directors, in its meeting held on 12 Jumada Al Alkirah 1445H (corresponding to 25 Decembsr
2023), approved a dividend of 3R 42,160,000 for the period ending on 30 September 2023,

The Company's Ordinary General Assembly In itz meefing held on 10 Shawwal 1443H (corresponding to
11 May 2022, authonzed the Bosard of Dweclors to distribule inferim profits on a guarterly or semi-annual

basis for the fiscal vear 2022, It was also approved to pay the Board of Directors’ remuneration for the
fizcal year anding in 31 December 2022 in tha amount of 3R 2 020 BOO.

The Boaard of Directors, in its maeting hedd on 24 Jumada Al Awal 1444H {comespending to 18 Decamber
2022, approved a dividend of SR 42,160,000 for the period ending on 30 September 2022,

33 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Cerfain comparative figures for the previous year have been reclassiflied o conform to the current year's
presantation.

6. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 2 January 2024, subsaquent o the end of the reporting perod, an accident oocurred i a reactor in a
praduction line belonging to a factory of a subsidiary (Saudi Chemical Company Limited) In Atshanah due
to an explosion,

Management is currently evaluating the overall impact on the consolidated firancial statemants, but
preliminary estimates indicate polential physical damage and assccated losses of approximately SR 10
million. Thesa esimates are subject o change as mare information becomes available,

As the event occurred after the reporting penod, it did not impact the consolidated financial stalemenis for
the vear ended 31 December 2023, Accordingly, the financial effects of this incident have not been adjusted
in tha financial statements for the yaar anded 371 Decembear 2023,

In managament’s opinion, thanma has been no other subssquent evants since 31 Decembser 2023 that wolid
have a material impact on the consclidated financial positon or consolidated financial performance of the
Group as reflected in these consclidated inancial statements.

F- APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statemants have been approved by the Board of Direciors of the Group on
27 Eha'ban 1445H [corespaonding to 8 March 2024),
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The results of the annual review of the effectiveness of internal control and the audit

committee’s opinion on the adequacy of the company’s internal control system

First: Formation of the audit committee:

The General Assembly approved the selection of members of the Audit Committee for the
period starting from 01/01/2022 AD and ending with the end of the current Council session on
12/31/2024 AD.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year 2023, the details of which are as
follows:

1st Meeting  Ynd Meeting  Yrd Meeting ¢th Meeting  oth Meeting

Position
16/03/2023 11/05/2023 03/08/2023 02/11/2023 13/12/2023
1- Mr. Fawaz Al- Chairman v v v v v 5
Fawaz
2- Mr. Abdul
v v v v v
Wahab Abed* | Member 5
3- Mr. Khaled Al Member v % v v v 5
Hoshan*
Mr. Abdullah Al-
v v v v v
Mehthil* Member 5

*Members outside the Board of Directors

Second: Independence and responsibilities:

Internal audit provides independent, objective services, with the aim of assisting the Board of
Directors, the Audit Committee and the Executive Management in carrying out their
responsibilities, with a high degree of efficiency and effectiveness, and is not subject to any
influence by the Executive Management and has all powers to have full and unrestricted

access to any records (printed or electronic). And the property and employees of the

company, in accordance with what is required to perform its work. The Internal Audit
Department, when carrying out its work, adopts a systematic approach to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness of internal control, in a way that enables achieving the company’s

objectives and protecting its assets. The scope of internal audit work includes examining the
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adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system. The company and the quality of

management, for the purpose of verifying whether the company's internal systems provide

reasonable assurance of achieving the company's objectives.

Third: The Audit Committee of the SCCH held five meetings in 2023 to implement the tasks
assigned to it, in accordance with the regulations approved by the General Assembly, and in
line with the corporate governance regulations, the most important of which are the

following:

-Study and discuss the audited annual consolidated financial statements and statements for
the year 2022 and approve them after reviewing them with the company’s management and
the external auditor to ensure their accuracy, fairness, and compatibility with the approved
accounting policies, approving them, and recommending to the Board of Directors to approve
them and submit them to the General Assembly for approval.

-Study and discuss the initial consolidated quarterly financial statements and statements for
the year 2023 and approve them after reviewing them with the company’s management and
the external auditor and recommending to the Board of Directors for their approval.
-Approval of the internal audit plan for the year 2023 based on the risk assessment after
discussion and answering the committee’s inquiries.

-Follow up on the implementation of the internal audit plan for the year 2023, which was
approved by the committee, discuss the periodic reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Department, and follow up on the implementation of corrective Actions.

-Study and discuss the external auditor’s report and meet with them to verify the
independence and effectiveness of the audit process, answer all inquiries, and ensure that
there are no obstacles that may affect the progress of the work.

-Reviewing the evaluation of the offers submitted by the external auditors’ offices who were
invited with the approval of the committee, and recommending to the Board of Directors that

they be presented to the General Assembly, to select an external auditor to audit the
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company’s accounts and the company’s quarterly and annual consolidated financial
statements from among the applicants and determine his fees.

-Follow up with executive management to enhance risk management and governance work

and activities.

Fourth: The audit committee’s opinion on the adequacy of the company’s internal control
system

Based on what was mentioned above, the Audit Committee reviewed the internal control and
oversight procedures within the limits of the planned and limited tasks and works that were
approved and tested by the Internal Audit Department and after discussion with the external
auditor and the executive management on the quarterly and annual business results and a
study. In the observations submitted to it, the Audit Committee can give reasonable assurance
about the company’s internal control systems, and the Audit Committee did not find out what
should be pointed out or believe that there is a weakness or fundamental defect in the internal
control systems and policy, knowing that it is not possible to give definitive confirmation of the
effectiveness of any system. For control and internal control with a degree of complete
reliability. The committee recommends that the company continue to update its systems,
policies and procedures that enhance the internal control environment.

There are no recommendations from the Audit Committee that conflict with the decisions of
the Board of Directors, or the Board rejected any of the recommendations that the Committee
submitted to the Board during the year 2023.



